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CHAIR CARROLL: .. . (gavel) ... This Land Use Committee meeting of March 15, 2006 is now in
session. Good morning, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning, Chairman.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Good morning.
CHAIR CARROLL: I've waited a long time to be able to say good morning to all of you.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: .. . (chuckle} ...
CHAIR CARROLL: This morning we have only one item, Land Use Item 38, Change in Zoning and
Pro ... , Project District Phase 1 Approval for Honua'ula/Wailea 670 Residential Development.

ITEM NO. 38:

CHANGE IN ZONING AND PROJECT DISTRICT PHASE 1 APPROVAL
FOR "HONUA 'ULAIWAILEA 670" RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

(e.c. No. 01-334)
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CHAIR CARROLL: The Committee is in receipt of County Communication No. 01-334, from the
former Planning Director, transmitting the following:
A proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE REPEALING CHAPTER 19.90,
MAUl COUNTY CODE, AND ESTABLISHING A NEW CHAPTER 19.90A, MAUl COUNTY
CODE, PERTAINING TO THE KIHEI-MAKENA PROJECT DISTRICT 9 (WAILEA 670)".
The purpose of the proposed bill is to grant Phase 1 Project District Approval to repeal in its
entirety Chapter 19.90, Maui County Code (MCC), and establish a new Chapter 19.90A, MCC,
relating to Kihei-Makena Project District 9 (Wailea 670), to facilitate the development of a
residential community consisting of up to 1,400 dwelling units, an IS-hole golf course with
recreational amenities, and village mixed uses.
Also, a draft bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE NO.
2171 (1992), RELATING TO KIHEI-MAKENA PROJECT DISTRICT 9 (WAILEA 670)
ZONING FOR PROPERTY SITUATED AT PAEAHU, PALAUEA, KEAUHOU, MAUl
HAWAII". The purpose of the draft bill is to amend Ordinance No. 2171, relating to
Kihei-Makena Project District 9, for approximately 402.35 acres to facilitate the proposed
development.
And lastly, a draft "BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO CHANGE ZONING FROM
AGRICULTURE AND OPEN SPACE DISTRICTS TO KIHEI-MAKENA PROJECT
DISTRICT (WAILEA 670) (CONDITIONAL ZONING) FOR PROPERTY SITUATED AT
PAEAHU, PALAUEA, KEAUHOU, MAUl, HAWAII". The purpose of the draft bill is to
change the zoning from Agriculture and Open Space District to Kihei-Makena Project 9 District
for approximately 267.65 acres, to facilitate the proposed development.
We will follow with the format that the Committee has been using since we, I have been Chair.
We will have a presentation by the developer, followed by comments from the Department, after
which we will have public testimony. Following that, we will open the floor to the Members for
questions.
I'm going to call a short recess while we lower the screen. Recess subject to the call of the
Chair. . .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

9:05 a.m.

RECONVENE:

9:07 a.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: ... (gavel). .. This Land Use meeting of March 15 is now back in session.
Members, presenting this presentation this morning will be Mr. Charlie Jencks. Mr. Jencks.
MR. JENCKS: Thank you. It appears we have a dead battery. What's wrong?
MS. NAKATA: Testing.
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Note:

PowerPoint presentation.

MR. JENCKS: Hello. You can hear me now? Thanks. Sorry. Thank you, Mr. Chair, Members of the
Land Use Committee, for allowing us this opportunity this morning to present the project. This
PowerPoint presentation--I've been given 20 minutes--so I'm going to roll through this fairly
quickly. This is the PowerPoint that I presented at the Lokelani Intermediate School in January,
with the addition of a couple of slides to address the specific issue we want to talk about this
morning. So with that, I guess I'll ask Linn to proceed.
One of the first things I want to establish here today is the compliance with the Kihei-Makena
Community Plan because without that compliance, this project can't move forward. It has to be
consistent with the Kihei-Makena Community Plan. And one of the things we want to address
first off is the addition, is the issue of housing in the project, 1,400 dwelling units. The
affordable component that we're proposing is consistent with the current status of the County's
Affordable Housing Ordinance at 30 percent. That would be a total of 420 units on-site; half of
those, 100 percent or less, 210 units; 105 units at 120 percent; and 105 units at 140 percent, once
again, on-site with the exception of a special needs opportunity that we've considered giving the
Council on special needs housing in Maui County located off-site. But this is the program to
implement the Kihei-Makena Community Plan to offer a variety of housing types on-site. Next
slide.
Also in compliance, a Village Mixed Use/Commercial area of 56 acres, which combines
Commercial and Residential activities; a maximum of 80,000 gross square feet of commercial,
and all the commercial uses are neighborhood level, which include things like grocery stores, gas
stations, and any public facilities such as additional fire fighting facilities or police substations
that may be of interest to those agencies in the future as we extend south in South Maui with
development. One IS-hole homeowner golf course is a recreational element that's identified in
the Community Plan, as well as public parks, public trail and pathway systems, and private
recreational facilities built within the project. The .. .I wanted to add that the, the pathways in the
project are nearly three miles of off-road pathways adjacent to the existing roads in the project
that are proposed. Buffer zones provided at all interfaces with existing and adjacent uses, such
as Maui Meadows and Wailea Resort and Makena Resort. And then future public use sites, it
provides for, like I said earlier, the expansion of facilities needed to serve the public, which
would include perhaps a County... a facility for DMV, would include office space possibly, or
police and fire if those are needed, or even emergency services. So we have the district that will
allow these kinds of uses and activities to take place as we develop the project. Next slide.
The current land use designations on the property are State Urban and in the Community Plan
Project District 9, which is described fairly concisely in the document, and the current zoning is
Project District 9 (Golf Course), which was done in the early '90s. It is presently zoned for two
golf courses, two IS-hole golf courses as well as Agriculture and Open Space on the remaining
area. Next slide.
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This matrix which shows you the entitlement history on this property goes back to 1988 when
the Community Plan was done to change the Project District 9 designation to include the entire
670 acres. You can see on the blue line that cuts across the middle that we started back in the
early '90s with 2,650 units. Then you go to the right to the yellow bar, we're at 1,400 units today
on the project. You can also see below that bar Commercial 8, Commercial at 6 acres and then
9 acres, and we're limited to 80,000 gross square feet in the current plan. Golf Course, it went
from two 18-hole golf courses at 341 acres to one 200 acre, IS-hole golf course. And then the
Parks and Open Space, we went from 32, to 6, to 36, to 90 acres of Park and Open Space in this
project. You can see also in the chart that we've got the VMX District included at 53 acres and
the 1,400 units which include Single-Family and Multi-Family categories. Next slide.
These are the agencies that we've met with over the last five years in trying to get community
input and then return back to the community with how we're addressing their specific issues.
These are all community associations or groups in South Maui as well as Central Maui. Next,
next slide.
Governmental input. Clearly, we've had to meet with all these agencies. We've received letters,
we've responded. In the last year, we've gone back to all of these agencies and talked to them
about what they need, what their updated concerns are so that we're current within the context of
this presentation to discuss with you today. Next slide.
Community features. The, the basic element in the plan today and the overlay is the smart
growth concept. We're combining various residential densities with commercial uses which is
something everybody talks about, but is rarely actually done or has, has yet been done in Maui
County. The only district that you have in Maui County today that allows that to happen is the
Light Industrial District. This project embraces and includes Residential and Commercial
together in the VMX District. Open Space features are integrated into the plan; all the drainage
areas are going to be kept natural and included in the plan; we have bicycle and pedestrian
facilities; and, and we've achieved a walkable scale so that you can actually get from your house
to a VMX District within a quarter or a half mile. You can walk that distance, you have a
walkable community. Connectivity with outside communities, such as Maui Meadows, is
possible as well as, as Wailea, and we've also included in the project, in the VMX District mass
transit opportunities in the plan. This project is located in an area where there is no need to
extend sewer or water at this point in time. The project has its own private water system, both
potable and nonpotable, and private wastewater treatment facility. Next slide.
VMX District provides for future public service opportunities. The Residential component
covers approximately 350 acres of the site or 55 percent of the site. The Commercial uses
include neighborhood type uses, such as I've described earlier, and we have a 20-year build-out
for the proj ect.
This is the concept plan that you've got in the handouts I've given to you in color. The
light-colored yellow areas, that maybe don't show up too well on the screen, are the
Single-Family; the ochre-color area is Multi-Family and VMX; the Golf Course is shown as well
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as all the drainage areas, and you can see all the maukalmakai drainageways are being preserved
within the project and included within that 90-acre category. Next slide.
Okay. I'm going to hand this mic over to a gentleman, Mr. John Ford. Recently, we had some
front page exposure in The Maui News on the issue of biodiversity on the project area, and my
approach has been in this project when I am faced with an, an issue that I don't know personally
about or I cannot handle, I hire the best people I can to come in and give me the best information
that money can get. If I have to pay people to get in helicopters, I have to pay people to do
testing, I will do that to get the facts so that you know exactly what we're dealing with. Mr. John
Ford is an Environmental Scientist who helped implement that program, and he's going to run
through the biodiversity issue with you. John.
MR. FORD: Thank you, Charlie. Can everyone hear me okay? Thank you. There were botanical and
wildlife surveys done on the site in 1988, 1993, and 2004. And when Charlie asked us to get
involved, we asked three other professional botanists in Hawaii who were experts in native
plants to put fresh eyes on the site and give us an evaluation. That was Maya LeGrande,
Stephanie Dunbar, and Art Medeiros. They did so and they agree on what needs to be done. The
results are embodied in the Conservation Plan that you see before you that is in preparation at the
present time.
To set the record straight, there are no listed endangered plants found on the project site. All the
plant species found on the project site are found elsewhere in Maui. Portions of Hono ... ,
Honua'ula associated with native dry forest are not the last remaining dry forest on Maui. Native
dry forest habitat and species of interest occur at Puu 0 Kali in greater health and in a managed
area. Also at Auwahi, the Kanaio Natural Area Reserve, in Ulupalakua Ranch lands east of the
project site, and some at La Perouse Bay. Now the nehe plant, Lipochaeta radii, and its found
on the project site, has an interesting leaf shape that lead one botanist, a man named Sherff,
many, many years ago to consider it a unique variety, not a unique species, a, a unique variety.
However, the current Manual Of Flowering Plants In Hawaii that was authored by Dr. Warren
Wagner, Darrel Herbst, and Cy Sohmer of the Bishop Museum did not find sufficient scientific
evidence to consider that as a distinct variety. Dr. Herbst is, is a friend and a colleague of mine
of, of nearly 30 years. We worked together at the U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service for over 12 years
conserving native Hawaiian resources and also identifying and designing new national wildlife
refuges together with private landowners and State Wildlife agencies as well as the Nature
Conservancy.
Now there are native plants on the site, but unfortunately none of them have any protection under
the law. But thankfully Charlie insists on doing the right thing, which makes our job a lot easier.
We're going to implement all the resource agency's recommendations that were, that we
received, and we're voluntarily writing a detailed management plan and taking actions to
conserve the rarest elements of the Honua 'ula characteristic native dry forest habitat, not only on
the project site, but elsewhere on leeward Haleakala, and we'll do so in full cooperation with
resource agencies and others. I, I brought a copy of that down here to see 'cause I can't really
see it from where I am.
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The elements of the plan that you see before you include doing our best to set aside some
kipukas in the area. Lee Altenberg was kind enough to come out to the project site with us and
help us find some of the plants that are out there. We have developed a proposal to set aside
kipukas where those plants are located and try to protect them in perpetuity; to work with native
Hawaiian plant propagators in the community--next slide, please--to create scientific
conservation collections of seeds and cuttings of native plants for propagations and planting
elsewhere; and also to support the efforts to restore native forests and mitigate habitat loss by
working with the Leeward Haleakala Watershed Partnership.
I'd be happy to--I'm going to let Charlie take over from here--but I'd be happy to answer
questions afterwards. Ah, okay, one more. Again, this is the map of the, of the whole area.
Down at the bottom, a single akoko plant was ... we found on the site with Lee's assistance. You
also see a small area there where nehe and awikiwiki and other native plants are found in, in
small kipukas. This is simply just representative, not a final plan by any means, but it just
indicates where these elements are that we are interested in conserving.
MR. JENCKS: Thank you, John. In terms of infrastructure, as I had mentioned earlier, the project will
have its own private potable and nonpotable water system with wells on-site and also resource
developed on Haleakala Ranch to the north of Maui Meadows in the Kihei-Makena Community
Plan District. We'll have our own on-site water treatment system that will then create water that
we can return back to the land for irrigation purposes. Privately built and publicly accessible
roads and pathway systems will be built on the project; public and private park facilities and
open space system used for natural drainageways and pathways; and we're incorporating
roundabouts at the major intersections to facilitate traffic movement in the project. The street
systems that we're proposing are built to more of a rural standard, not an urban standard, to keep
within the context of the project and the land form itself. We are emphasizing connectivity to
adjacent communities with pathways and roadways, if possible. We understand the issue of
diverting traffic. We don't want to create that issue, but we do believe that connectivity is an
important feature of any project and how it fits within its, its adjacent uses. As a, as a part of the,
the potable/nonpotable system and to extend the use of water out as far as possible, use of
drought tolerant plants will be used as well as a lot of those native plants that John Ford talked
about earlier; the use of native plants wherever we can. And energy efficiency recommendations
in zoning, the County has since passed an energy efficiency ordinance so, of course, we'll have
to comply with that fully.
Park assessment fees are now $11,800 per unit in South Maui. That includes even affordable
housing. The park assessment fees for this project will be in excess of$16 million. The current
zoning on the project includes a Little League requirement and what we have proposed is in lieu
of building the Little League facility in 670 or Honua 'ula, we'd rather that be built in Central
Kihei where it can be easily accessible by the kids in Central Maui and the, the project will
provide a cash payment to the County of Maui for the full value of the land and the
improvements upon completion or finalization of the first subdivision within the project. Today
that value is approximately--it, it was five years ago $3 % million. You can well imagine that it's
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in excess of that today, and we'll come up with a current accurate cost estimate. I'm imagining
it's going to be 4 Y2 to $5 million in today's dollars. So that would be money paid directly to the
County in exchange for removing this requirement from the project, and that money could be
used to facilitate development of the regional park in Central Kihei, and the Kihei Little League
folks support this concept as well as the Parks, Department of Parks and Recreation.
At our time with the Planning Commission, we proposed a traffic impact fee of $5,000 per unit,
and we're sticking with that. That's a condition from the Planning Commission. That's about
$7 million that would be paid to the County of Maui for traffic improvements in South Maui.
We are also meeting with the State Department of Transportation with our partners, both Makena
Resort and Wailea Resort, in funding the future expansion of Piilani Highway from Kilohana
Drive to Wailea Ike Drive in South Maui. Right now there's an effort between the three traffic
consultants to do one consolidated traffic report that would be consistent upon which we would
identify triggers for design, acquisition of land, if necessary, and then the design and, and
contracting and construction of the improvements. And that's, that agreement is presently in
process, and that is estimated to be about a $15 million improvement that would be borne by the
three major development entities in South Maui.
Lastly, this school fee for this project was defined as $850 a unit in the eady '90s, and in all
conscious I can't stand up in front of a crowd of people and say we're going to pay that. I went
to the State and offered to pay them $3,000 per unit because that's a more current value that
would really help the State. Based upon 1,400 units, and this money is paid at, at close of
escrow on units, that's over $4 million that they could use to acquire land or however they want
to use the money in South Maui, and the DOE has, has gratefully accepted that offer, written me
a letter in response and we're working on the agreement at present.
In conclusion, we feel, the project team and many of the supporters in South Maui, feel the
project implements the Community Plan; it will provide the housing that's required within the
plan; assist in infrastructure development that we've already demonstrated through our
leadership with, with the improvements to Piilani Highway and the balance of the Piilani
Highway; and in our interface with the, the KCA, the WCA, the Makena Homeowner's
Association and the other groups in South Maui, we've really worked hard to address their
concerns. And I think that is, is evident in a couple of areas: one, by the people that are here
today to testify in support of the project, but also the package that I gave to the Council Members
yesterday, there's 131 letters in a file ... every letter signed individually addressing their specific
support for the project and the, and the letters are summaries of inputs we've received from the
various individuals who have contacted us and said things about the project. So this is, this
is ... these letters are a direct response of the public's interest and support of the project.
So with that, Mr. Chair, thank you for your time.
CHAIR CARROLL:
. . .(gavel) . ..

Thank you, Mr. Jencks.

We'll now have a two-minute recess.
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RECESS:

9:25 a.m.

RECONVENE:

9:27 a.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: .. .(gavel). .. This Land Use Committee meeting of March 15,2006 is now back
in session. We'll now hear from the Planning Department.

MR. YOSHIDA: Good morning, Mr. Chair and Members of the Committee. Clayton Yoshida,
Administrator, Current Planning Division, subbing for Staff Planner Colleen Suyama whose
mother is in the hospital.
We did provide an overview of the project at the, at your January, early January meeting. Since
then, we would add that the Department have, has submitted several documents in response to
requests from the Committee Chair. These are the Final Environmental Assessment accepted by
the Maui Planning Commission in 1989 in support of the Community Plan Amendment that was
approved by the County in 1992. Also, we transmitted the 2005 Annual Report on the District
Boundary Amendment Report to the State Land Use Commission as well as the State
Department of Health's Twelve Conditions Applicable to All New Golf Course Development,
dated January 1992 (Version 4).
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. We'd now like to begin public testimony. Public testimony, you have
three minutes and one minute to conclude. With everyone who has a pager or a cell phone,
please put it on the off or the silent mode. We ... also would like to note that all Council
Members are present, except Mr. Kane, who will be joining us in a few moments. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, the first testifier is Raphael Wellerstein, to be followed by Kathy Worley.
CHAIR CARROLL: Please give your name at the podium and if you do represent an organization or a
company, please let us know at that time .

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MS. WORLEY: Good morning, my name is Kathy Worley. My husband Jim Worley and I own Pali Kai
Realtors, and we have lived in South Maui for 27 years. And even though we own a real estate
company, I'm here this morning to testify as an individual. Harry Eager just said to me, oh,
you're looking for something to sell? And I said, no, Harry, I like live there myself. I watched
670 developed, I've watched the evolution of this project for. .. wow, a long, long time, and I
began to believe that I would not live long enough to actually see this happen in my lifetime.
Lots of us would like to live in God's country up in Kula, but that's not possible logistically, and
this is, this is a beautiful, beautiful piece of property. Often you here from a NIMBY faction, not
in my backyard, this is in my backyard and it is, it's just a beautiful, beautiful project. It seems
to me that Charlie has done everything that we've asked him to do over all these years, listened
to the community, and as I say, I didn't believe that it, it would come to pass in my lifetime. But
when I actually stood on that piece of land Wednesday night, I, I thought maybe it was possible.
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It made me think of the words from Psalm 121, I raise my eyes to the mountains, from where

will my help come? And I would ask that you help this project come, come to, to pass. Thank
you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Questions for the testifier? Hearing none, Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, Ralph ... , Raphael Wellerstein, to be followed by Frank Bud Pikrone.
MR. WELLERSTEIN: Good morning, Council Members. My name is Raphael Wellerstein and I am
here on behalf of support for Mr. Jencks and the project at hand. I've been to the last few
meetings, one at the Lokelani Elementary School, and I've been to the site ... oh, on different
occasions now. I am a homeowner and resident of Kihei, I have a small child, and I really enjoy
being in South Maui. I'm formally from the west side. I've lived in Lahaina for the past 13
years prior to moving to Kihei. And Honua'ula is a beautiful development and I'm in total
support, as I would love to eventually reside in that project if that's possible. So, I ask Council
Members to please really consider this project, and I'd like to see it go forward. And that, that's
it.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MR. WELLERSTEIN: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Frank Bud Pikrone, to be followed by Thomas Cook.
MR. PIKRONE: Good morning, Members. Good morning, Chair. My name is Bud Pikrone with
Wailea Community Association. I'm here today representing the Community Association. I'm
not going to take a lot of time. I've testified before you before. We've seen this project through
the years develop to fulfill what the community has asked of it, what the plan, the Community
Plan had in store for it, and we have worked very well with the project. They have attended to
the things that we have asked them to do. You're aware of all of those. We are still working
with them for future. We will continue to work with the project for future needs of the area, and
we feel very confident that this project has done everything that it could do and can do to make it
a successful project for South Maui. Because as we've seen, it includes a lot of things that, that
the community does need, and the only way we're going to get that is really to work with this
project to get those accomplished, and they are working with us to make that happen. So, I
would hope that you would move this project forward and we will continue to support them.
Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions for the testifier? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Thank you for being here, Mr. Pikrone. Could
you please tell us what commitments Wailea 670 folks have made to your organization?
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MR. PIKRONE: Yes. You should have the ... a letter from the past in front of you, an agreement, and,
and if I recall correctly all of them, we were concerned over drainage issues, we were concerned
over traffic issues, we have been concerned with beach access, maintenance, and improvements.
These are things that we've discussed with them over the years, and they have agreed to work
with us on and we have a signed agreement on, on all the issues that we were concerned over.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I didn't ask you what your concerns were necessarily. I
asked what commitments were made.
MR. PIKRONE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Are you talking about the letter from last term when this came up
or the last time this--no, that was Makena. . .. (chuckle) . ..
MR. PIKRONE: That was Makena. There is, there is an agreement that we discussed actually at the
last, last meeting in, in January and that had to do with access to ... one of the items was access
through and into, to Wailea area off of Kaukahi Street, and one of our concerns there was that we
did not want that to become a through street which would be another access into Makena. We
are still hopeful that someday there will be a road that goes through 670 and that highway will be
extended to Makena so that we would become like another access road for many reasons,
including safety. So what we didn't want is Kaukahi to become an access road, and the
agreement was that that would be for emergency traffic, it would be gated for emergency
traffic ...not a, a true access road in and out of the project, and it wouldn't allow pedestrian
traffic to enter the project.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Did you submit that signed agreement to this Committee?
MR. PIKRONE: That was submitted sometime ago, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And when you say sometime ago-MR. PIKRONE: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --we've got three binders here. So, I, 1-MR. PIKRONE: .. .(chuckle) . .. I, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: --have to focus in somewhere.
MR. PIKRONE: I'd have to look back, but it was probably... --(CHANGE OF TAPE)-- ... a year ago
at least.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Could you resubmit that to the Committee?
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MR. PIKRONE: Sure can. I certainly can.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Thomas Cook, to be followed by Lee Altenberg.
MR. COOK: Good morning, Chainnan, Council Members. My name's Thomas Cook. I'm here to give
testimony on behalf of both, as President of Maui Contractors Associations as well as an
individual. I strongly urge you to please step up to the plate and approve this project. I
encourage you to ask me the question, if you want to ask me a question later as about why I feel
so strongly about it, this project is, to me, is the best of both worlds. It's a, if you look at the
topography and the terrain, I think the project is, is very appropriately designed for it with low
density, they're addressing the drainage issues, they're working with all the neighbors. But
mostly it is a really good blend of the affordable component and the high-end component. This
organization has the financial resources. They've demonstrated their commitment over a period
of time that they are going to stick with it and follow-through. I personally am going to hold
them accountable over the years. This is going to be a long-tenn build-out. They're going to
have challenges with the different fluctuations in our economy and whatnot. There's 420
affordable housing units and half of 'em below 100 percent. Ladies and gentlemen, that's not
going to come your way very often. We also have the possib ... , the potential there for
several--I'm hoping--at least 100 homes, like $7 million homes, and often you'll here the
criticism, we don't need anymore multi-million dollar homes on Maui. And I'd like to sit down
with anybody and, and educate you to the benefits of the, that component in our community. It
really adds to the diversity of our island home. You're looking at $42 million of taxes for 100,
$7 million homes. You're looking at $250 million worth of wages that's going into the cons ... ,
into the pockets of the truck drivers, the landscapers, the carpenters. That is, that is beneficial to
our community, okay, and you're just talking about 100 homes. You're talking about 420
affordable housing units which will be for local residents, hopefully for the people who are
currently working in the Wailea area. Some of my friends from Up country ask oh, could I get
one, and I'm saying well, it'd probably be better to get an affordable housing unit in your area
where you existing, live. That's potentially, if there's two cars per house, that's approximately
900 cars that aren't on the Piilani Highway doing the, you know, Haleakala-Mokulele Highway
shuffle getting to work in Wailea. This is a good project that is very generous to the community.
It's been a controversial project, it's been reviewed, they've been responsive. They have the
resources to address it. This is an opportunity. Please, please, please ... you're the gatekeepers
for overdevelopment. You're also-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. COOK: --our leaders. You're also the statesmen to address what's good for our community.
Please, scrutinize this project, but it's not going to get any better than this. If you look at all the
- 12 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
March 15, 2006

other projects on the board that come before you, they have been responsive, they are stepping
up to the plate, and I encourage you not to let this opportunity go by. Thank you for the
opportunity to give testimony.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Association?

Tom, are you testifying on behalf of the Maui Contractors

MR. COOK: Both. I asked if it was possible to do both, but yes I am.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: As, as their President?
MR. COOK: As their President.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MR. COOK: Thank you very much, Council.
AUDIENCE: ... (applause) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata. If we could please hold the applause out in the audience. It's really
nice when, you know, you applaud somebody that you like, you agree with. But it makes it
really hard on some testifiers coming up over here for the first time, not knowing if you're going
to have a dead silence or applause ...
ALL: ... (chuckle) . ..
CHAIR CARROLL: ... and it's not really appropriate. So if you could please restrain yourselves.
Thank you. Proceed.
MS. NAKATA: Lee Altenberg, to be followed by Reuben Garcia.
MR. ALTENBERG: Hi, I'm Lee Altenberg. I'm testifying as an individual. I'm an Associate Professor
at the University of Hawaii at Manoa in Information and Computer Sciences, and I'm also the
Chair of the Native Hawaiian Plant Society on Maui.
Charlie Jencks is to be lauded for making a, a great effort to deal with a problem that he didn't
create, that he inherited from two previous owners of the Wailea 670 property which really stem
from the 1988 botanical survey that was conducted by Char & Associates. Now this survey is a
mostly accurate inventory of the native plants that are, that are in the southern portion of the
property, and I provided some materials that should be on each of your desks with, which has a, a
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picture of Wailea 670. Overlaid on it at the far right end is the area where the, the native plants
can be found. The, the botanical survey was a, a pretty good inventory, but it gave absolutely no
perspective on the conservation value of the land, it describes it as scrub. And to any public
official or to the investors in the property themselves, they would have no idea that they had a
remnant, an irreplaceable remnant of Hawaiian dry land forest, and particularly of low land, low
elevation of wiliwili forest. On a page there is a chart showing the remnants of what was once a
Ubiquitous wiliwili forest, there's only very small patches left. And the Wailea 670 is one of only
two of them where two of these dry land species occur together, the awikiwiki and the nehe, the
/ipochaeta rockii. The other being Puu 0 Kali, which is under conservation efforts ... the deer
have been fenced out and it's aimed to be cons ... , conserved and restored. And by failing to
provide the, the value, the conservation value of this land to the owners and to the public, that
survey really set the, the project on a, on a wrong course and created this collision of a golf
course and housing development with a, a remnant piece of dry land forest.
Now, Charlie didn't create that plan, he inherited it, and I think he's, he's to be lauded for trying
to find a way to mitigate this collision, which John Ford testified to. But really knowing how
endangered the dry land forest ecosystem is, this, this entire tract which is roughly 20 percent-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. ALTENBERG: --thank you--20 percent of the, in the far southernmost portion of the property,
trying to fit a golf course in there is not going to maintain the habitat, which currently has
something like 24 native Hawaiian species reproducing on their own without any assistance from
humans, being hammered by axis deer, and, and being able to deal with the invasive species that
have come along over the decades; and putting a few kipukas aside is not going to preserve this
irreplaceable habitat. And so I think the best thing would be to set aside this area as a reserve
and to allow the current 1,400 units slated for development to, to be built at a higher density and
the remaining 8 ... , northern 80 percent of the property, which is basically botanically worthless.
It's because of the, the unique geological history-MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. ALTENBERG: I better, I better quit here.
CHAIR CARROLL: Your time is up.
MR. ALTENBERG: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Dr. Altenberg, for being here. It's much appreciated.
Of this 20 percent that you have outlined here, and I see you have done a GPS map that notes all
the various plant species, how many species in here would be eligible for the endangered species
list, although they haven't yet been listed?
- 14 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
March 15, 2006

MR. ALTENBERG: Basically there's two species that have, would have legal status because there are
candidate listed endangered species or species of concern, and they don't have the same legal
protection as endangered, listed endangered species, but they are recognized in the Hawaii State
law. That's the canavalia pubescens, the awikiwiki and capparis sandwichiana, the maiapilo,
which Charlie had as one of the back, background pictures in his PowerPoint presentation, and
those are scattered throughout the entire area. They're not just isolated in small pockets, they're
in throughout the entire area of 'a'a lava flow that's about 10,000 years old, which you have in
your handout there.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What, what protection is afforded from, from the State for these?
MR. ALTENBERG: I am not entirely familiar with the law, but I saw at least that they have to be
included in environmental impact statements.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And these were not in the Environmental Impact Statement done
for this project?
MR. ALTENBERG:
survey and--

I haven't seen that Environmental Impact Statement. I've seen the botanical

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The botanical survey that was done for the EIS or-MR. ALTENBERG: Yeah, in 1988.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And were they listed then?
MR. ALTENBERG: They are, they are mentioned. The .. .in that botani ... , in that survey there is a, a
little drawing that shows a small section that Winona Char recommended be set aside because
the plants that are in there, but these plants are actually found throughout that southern portion,
and when she came back in 1993 this area had been graded and it's a, it's flattened now. So it's
been destroyed. And after that she thought that propagation of one of the species would be
sufficient to mitigate the botanical, the impact on the botanical resources, but
cultivation... bringing these things into cultivation makes them dependent on people for their, for
their survival forever if you destroy their habitat. Something about this habitat is unique and that
we find these plants surviving there and nowhere else. Again, there's only two other spots where
the, on Maui where this lipochaeta rockii can be found. It's an extremely rare plant and this
particular form is found only on this one lava flow. If it, if that habitat is destroyed, there's no
guarantee that it can survive. So ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And you're focusing on the flora ofthis habitat, but what about the
fauna? Does this, what does this habitat provide?
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MR. ALTENBERG: I'm afraid I don't, I can't address that. I don't, I'm not familiar with that. There
are other people, however, and I think that the County Council would do well to make available
the, the real experts on Hawaiian dry land forest. I'm basically here as a, a collector of
information that's available. But the people who have published research on dry land forest--I
can provide a list to the Committee--I think is who you should rely on to get an assessment of
the ... conservation value of the entire plot that, of that 20 percent' a' a flow.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could you provide us with that information?
MR. ALTENBERG: Yes, I'd be happy to.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: And then you, you've seen these ... kipukas that they're suggesting
that they, that be set aside. It's kind of hard to make a comparison because the map's are
different scale. But of the 20 perc ... , of the dry land forest that you indicate that is 20 percent of
the overall project, what percent of that dry land area do these kip ... , kipukas cover-MR. ALTENBERG: I haven't had a chance to see what their kipukas are. I know that the total acreage
of this dry land habitat is something around 150, and the plants are scattered throughout it. The,
the graphic I, I provide you shows the trails where, where I and, and my colleagues have walked
through and just marked the plants along the way that we found that were native plants of
interest. Many of them are that species of concern, the, the maiapilo. And so that gives you an
idea of the density. There's plenty of places where we didn't get through where we would expect
to find the same thing, and so it's not just a few pockets in that 'a'a flow; it's really scattered
throughout.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: And so were you consulted in these preservation sites?
MR. ALTENBERG: In these kipukas?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
MR. ALTENBERG: No, no not directly.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so you don't really know how big they are-MR. ALTENBERG: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --or what, what areas had been preserved?
MR. ALTENBERG: No, I'm sorry I don't.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. ALTENBERG: Thank you.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Thank you, Dr. Altenberg. One of your photographs that you
show in here is of the wiliwili, and what I wanted to find out because the, the species is under
threat-MR. ALTENBERG: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --from the gall wasps. Are these species or are these particular
specimens that are located throughout this property--I notice that they're quite tall--and do you
believe that they're able to be preserved or saved, you know, in some way?
MR. ALTENBERG: Yeah. Well, that's an open question at the moment. What, I was surprised--I mean
I expected to find skeletons when I went up there last week with John Ford and colleagues, and I
was surprised on your last page there is a picture of these two tall wiliwilis--not the very last
page, the one before that--taken last week, and a surprising number of them are in leaf. .. the
ones in the high, seem to be the higher elevation ones. But one of John's ... Ford's company
thought there might be genetic variation in the wiliwili that made some resistant to the gall wasp.
So the fact that they're in leaf despite this, this catastrophic infestation to me is really surprising
and interesting, a scientific question that should be pursued, and these wiliwili trees might
provide an answer. So if I just looked at 'em now and said are these going to die, I would say
they're going to survive. They might not produce many seeds until a biological control is
brought in. But they're send ... , they're sending out leaves and that's what they need to do to
survive. So ... but it's an open question.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The species, though, in general and because these look like older
speClmens-MR. ALTENBERG: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --you would not know at this point in time if these may actually hold
a key to the pest resistance?
MR. ALTENBERG: No. In fact, I mean there's a number of scientific questions that this habitat could
help answer. I mean the, the question about the evolution of the, the nehe, the why, why are the
leaf forms different here from somewhere else. You know, this is an area of scientific value as
well as conservation value, and understanding this, why some of these wiliwili trees are able to
leaf out and despite the wasp presence, that's also a scientific question that they could be,
provide helpful information for.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and I really appreciate this because one of the things we try to
do is mitigate, but in this case, if I'm understanding you correctly, mitigation is not appropriate,
it would be preservation of the area. Is that correct?
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MR. ALTENBERG: Well, if you could build golf courses in forests and successfully save the habitat,
you'd have golf courses in Yellowstone and in Haleakala National Park, but there aren't any.
And I think John is, is trying to do what's an essentially impossible task based on the errors of
the past, and that the best thing would be to just set the area aside, change the plan for the
remaining 80 percent of the property to accommodate the development concept. And, you know,
I would support a higher density, you knOw. .. that seems to me what smart development is all
about, smart growth, is preserving your natural areas and, and making a more compact walkable
community where there is no biological conservation value, and that's 80 percent of the property.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and you would also discourage any kind of paths into this area
or walkways that-MR. ALTENBERG: No, I would encourage that. I mean this is a, a piece of dry land forest that could
be accessible to people ... you know, all the other parts are inaccessible. And it's a real shame
living on Maui that people don't know what nature looks like, Hawaii nature, growing in our
midst, and I think this could be an opportunity for that. It's very rugged, but footpaths could be
made through the area and, and I don't think that would impact the botanical resources there;
they're pretty sturdy.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. ALTENBERG: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MR. ALTENBERG: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Rueben Garcia, to be followed by Jason Stenger.
MR. GARCIA: Good morning, Chairman. Good morning, Members of the Council. I'm here to testify
as an individual and in support of my friend Charlie Jencks. I think this project represents
positive and responsible growth here on the island, positive because of many jobs that it will
create in the process for, again, truckers, carpenters, laborers--just the, the working man real...,
really and women of Maui. In my daily travels as a safety manager, I, I talk to people from all
walks of ages from young to old, and it's, it's so nice to see them working so hard, apprentices
especially, right out of high school who are trying to, you know, make a trade, you know, learn a
trade so they can have a good, a good job for themselves as they grow up. Unfortunately, these
days what's, what's also positive about this project is that affordable housing concept. Hopefully
these young people that are trying to make a, a career for themselves, the equation will work out
for them where they can be able to move into an affordable home with an affordable down
payment, whereas right now it's a little lopsided. It's not like in the days before where our
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parents could go out and, and buy homes, put $10,000 down and have an affordable mortgage. I
think right now hopefully it'll, it'll even out a little bit more--one positive side of it. Another is
it's responsible growth because of the con ... , the attention to detail that has been put into the
ways of how potable water will be supplied to the project, not taking from other places. It's kind
of the, with the well being on the site ...we're creating our, their own, their own water for the
project. The road improvements that have already been made and will be made to prevent
potential gridlocks. Also, the wastewater distribution to the South Maui pumping station, and
lastly, the nonpotable water system that'll be used to water the golf course. Now, most
importantly, one of the things for me, what really moved me at the last public hearing in Kihei,
was Kimokea's testimony about the cultural aspect of the whole project, and I think he summed
it up pretty, pretty well in, in that as far as cultural sites and plant life and whatnot. And we've
had a lot of people through the years come up to microphones and speak about the aina and this
and that about, you know, how we should preserve Hawaii and why these people are coming
from here and making golf courses and whatnot. But I think we're all, they're all trying to send
the same message, but he did it in a very professional. .. he answered all your questions in a
well-educated manner and, and I'd listen to the guy any day.
So again this, this
project. .. represents positive and responsible growth, and I stand behind it all the way because
the growth of our island is inevitable, it's, it's really going to happen and... but so long as it's
done in that manner, why not. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL:
Ms. Nakata.

Thank you.

Any questions for the testifier?

Hearing none, thank you.

MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Jason Stenger, to be followed by Chuck Hills.
MR. STENGER: Good morning. My name is Jason Stenger and a resident here, was raised here and
have a family, three kids and a wife. And I'm here in support. You know, I graduated King
Kekaulike in '99 and a lot of my colleagues and friends are moving off the island, a lot of them
leaving, and kind of disturbing because of lack of, you know, opportunities here. And I think
there's a lot of opportunities ... that are going to be coming up, especially with projects like this,
especially with a 20-year build-out, and that's why I'm in support of it. I think that, you know,
like this last gentleman said, it is inevitable, development. I think it is true. A lot of people love
this island, it's beautiful, there's thousands that want to come here and live here, and it's going to
be hard to stop it, but I think it's just smart to try to control in a, you know, a smart growth
manner, which a lot of people used the term. And in my opinion, I think this project is that. I
would be thrilled to live there, personally. I know my family would, too, and that's why I look
forward to it. ... That's it.
CHAIR CARROLL:
Ms. Nakata.

Thank you.

Any questions for the testifier?

MS. NAKATA: Chuck Hills, to be followed by Mercer "Chubby" Vicens.
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MR. HILLS: Good morning, Chair. Good morning, Members. I followed this project for quite a while
now. I've been to your meetings also on affordable housing. I've tried to listen to what it is that
the Council wants to hear in terms of planning for Maui, planning for Maui citizens. I'm
speaking here as a citizen and a resident ofMaui.
I think if I were sitting where you are, I would want to hear a number of things about any proj ect
that was brought before me. I would want to know what the residential plan was, the fact that
maybe 65, 60 percent of this was for multi-family so there'd be a greater use of the land, an
overall acceptable density. I would want to know about the mixed commercial aspects which
might represent lower traffic impact in any project that was being brought before me. I'd want to
know about walking access and less vehicular traffic on the streets, and I would applaud people
who would bring a project to me that would build its own water system, both potable and
nonpotable, and also provide for private treatment of sewage. So far as I can tell right now the
biggest cost to the County has been to elect officials to come to meetings and to hear all this, but
in the long-term this project will return a great deal of money to the County. I would want to
know about the infrastructure design. Would it be for low, in low conflict with the environment?
Would the roads be smaller? Would there be roundabouts? Would there be pedestrian paths and
bicycle paths? I would want to know about off-site structure, infrastructure. I would be
impressed if someone had stepped up to the plate and put money towards the widening of the
highway for access to the project. I'd want to know whether they wanted to fund a new regional
park or whether they wanted to provide for further extension of the infrastructures to serve this.
I'd want to find out if they'd surveyed and resurveyed the environment, the ecology, the land to
find out if they were going to predict, excuse me, protect the artifacts that would be there as well
as the plant life and the fauna and flora. And we've heard from two experts here this morning,
both of whom said there are valuable things there, and you have guarantees from this developer
to look into that, to preserve it, and to protect it, and that would impress me as well. I would
have met with the community associations, I'd want to know that they met with the community
associations and addressed their concerns and listened to what they wanted to do and said that
they would comply with that. And also, I'd want to know whether they were building in
productive ag land or in other, in, in ag lands that might be nonproductive, that is not in
production, that is hillside, that is ... has more limited usage, that is not forest, that is not
beachfront, and that plans were being taken to ameliorate and address any runoff problems, and
I'm aware of that as well.
So, I look at this project and I say what is not to like here? You have someone who is willing to
commit money and time, make long-term commitments to this to bring in a vast amount of jobs,
amount of income to the County both in taxes. And I would say to myself this is a project
that. .. that having looked at the entire history of almost 20 years, they have adjusted, they have
modified, they have move forward-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. HILLS: --they have met it all for us. So, I would urge you to consider all of this and give a
positive vote. Thank you very much.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Could you please state your name for the record?
MR. HILLS: Chuck Hills.
CHAIR CARROLL:
Ms. Nakata.

Thank you.

Any questions for the testifier?

Hearing none, thank you.

MS. NAKATA: Mercer "Chubby" Vicens, to be followed by Pamela Tumpap.
MR. VICENS: Chairman Carroll, Members of the Committee, my name is Mercer "Chubby" Vic ens
and I am testifying as an individual today on LU-38, the Honua'ula project or 670, as it is
currently known.
This project, as you, all of you know, started back in '98, and here we are some 18 years later
trying to decide whether it should go or not. I'll just present the facts as I understand them. The
fact that this community is now approximately 60 percent of the original intended number of
units. I think they started with 2,650 and now they're down to 1,400. I absolutely love the fact
that 30 percent of the units will be affordable on-site. The fact that over the last five years
Mr. Jencks has taken his word and his commitment to the community, pointing out over 18
organizations he has met with. I love the fact that this community is planned as a self-contained
village. As you know, the less auto traffic you can mitigate, the better you are. I love the fact
that they're including public space, they're making it a walkable community; they have a private
water system for both potable and nonpotable uses; a standalone sewer treatment facility--all of
these paid for by the developer. And yet they've also contributed, when this, when the sun sets,
they will have contributed over $40 million to school fees, traffic impact fees, park assessments,
and highway work. The thing about this project that impresses me the most is trying to make it a
community that is connected to the neighboring people, while not intruding on them.
I think the star of this particular presentation is Mr. Jencks. Mr. Jencks, as all of you know, has
been in the community a long time. I think he brings integrity with him, he keeps ...
--(CHANGE OF TAPE)-- .. .if he says he's going to do something, he does it. And obviously
after 18 years he also has a great deal of patience.
So, I ask this body to work with him, work with 670-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. VICENS: --to try and develop a better community, put in the things that we feel that are needed,
and allow the project to move forward. It's not often that you run into someone like Charlie
Jencks and the 670 group. They've put their money where their mouth is upfront, and I totally
support their effort. Thank you.

- 21 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
March 15,2006

CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you, Mr. Vicens.
Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Pamela Tumpap, to be followed by Anthony Carter.
MS. TUMPAP: Aloha, Chair Carroll and Council Members. I'm Pamela Tumpap and I know Charlie
Jencks and I would consider Charlie a friend, and I think he's done an amazing job with this
development. But I'm not here to testify as Charlie's friend, I'm here to testify on my own
behalf and as a member of this community.
When I became aware of this development and all the things that I saw happening with this
development, I thought it was an excellent example of smart, responsible growth... you know,
the work that they've done over the past five years to be compliant with the Kihei-Makena
Community Plan, the meetings that they've held with the over, it looked like 15
associations--when I was counting quickly from that slide shown today--community groups who
all had different concerns that they've worked extremely hard to address. They have worked
with these groups year after year looking at different things; they have brought in people to do
different studies; they have worked to create more open space, reducing the number of units, as
Chubby mentioned, down to 1,400; they've got pathways; you're going to have 30 percent
affordable housing, which we all know is desperately needed in this community; they've done
the botanical and wildlife surveys and created a conservation plan; they have a cultural team who
is addressing and promoting the native culture here. They have developed the water and sewer
resources through private systems and are paying for those. They have dealt with and are
continuing to deal with traffic surveys and roadway, highway, excuse me, highway widenings
and developing roadways that create a lower impact on the communities surrounding them, and
have done voluntary contributions of $5,000 per unit on traffic impact fees. Additionally, the
project will contribute $3,000 per unit, as Charlie mentioned, to help with schools, and $11,800
per unit to help with parks.
With this project, the word that has come up from the entire time that I've been involved with it
is voluntary. The developer is constantly getting involved in voluntary measures to make it a
great smart growth project for the community. The plans right now have taken five years to
evolve to where it is now, and now they're before you for Phase 1 approval. I urge that this
group and this body give them that Phase 1 approval. It has been a long time coming, it is a
wonderful development, and I think it is one that our community needs and South Maui supports.
So, I urge you, again, to approve Phase 1 and use this as a showcase development for future
development here in Maui County.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MS. TUMPAP: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
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MS. NAKATA: Anthony Carter, to be followed by Neal Kunin.
MR. CARTER: Good morning, my name's Anthony Carter. I'm testifying today in favor of the rapid
forward process for Honua 'u1a. I'm testifying not as a licensed general contractor--License No.
BC15840 for the record--I'm testifying as I have previously, as a parent, as an individual. I'm
not testifying with some hidden agenda, some ulterior motive. Charlie's a friend of mine, but
that doesn't matter.
They're, they're putting together a project which is going to give to the community. It's not
going to take as most projects seem to in the past. Charlie's put together an awesome plan.
Personally, I would like to think that my daughter might have an opportunity to get a, an
affordable home there. So there's a selfish motive involved perhaps with my testimony this
mornmg.
I was up there the other day. You know, that's a God forsaken place--it's a fire hazard, it's lava

rock. They're not taking prime ag land, they're not taking prime oceanfront land. They're
taking a chunk of lava rock and they're going to do a good thing, and I think the longer Maui
dithers with this the worse the situation will become, as has been evident over the last ten years
with lack of housing being built.
So, one last thing. I'm not going to bore you with reasons why it should go ahead. I have a
letter which I signed the other day. I just want to say that I didn't expect to be here, but what the
heck. Let's move forward with this project. It's not going to please everybody, you can't, but I
think it'll please the majority of people on Maui and will add a lot to just, just the quality of life
for those that. . .1ike my daughter, for example, that currently we live in Haiku. She's got a hell
of a trip each day down to the Maui Prince. She gave up living at home. She lives in a rat hole
of an apartment down in Kihei. You know, this, this is going to afford an opportunity to a lot of
people. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Neal Kunin, to be followed by Ken Jencks.
MR. KUNIN: Good morning, Council and Chairman. Ah, let's see, let's gIve you just a quick
background for a second just to give you some insight.
CHAIR CARROLL: Your name, sir?
MR. KUNIN: My name, Neal Kunin. I'm here testifying as an individual, but in terms of my time on
Maui and in terms of my association with Mr. Jencks as a community member, as an
entrepreneur when starting out in 1986 ... working with County Council in a very similar, much
more small scale situation... (chuckle) . .. but in being instrumental in dealing with a community
that is, in this sense, under renovation, Makawao. I'm from Haiku. Wailea is a territory which I
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don't get much chance to VISIt. Currently, I am a realtor... after 21 years on the island .
. . . {chuckle} . . , But as an entrepreneur and a business owner on the island, as an individual, as a
family member, as a parent, as all of that stuff, I want to ask and put this in a format addressing
the Council Members, and I'm not going to repeat all of the statistics and all the facts of why this
project should go forward. Yes, obviously I'm attesting for it in the positive way. But my
question to you--and I don't expect answers at this particular time, but I want you to go home
tonight and think about it--my question to you is what does it take to recognize what we need
here on this island?
You know, again as in, in my familiarity with Makawao and the County Council in 1987, 1988, I
ran into a similar situation where I was being stonewalled. I'm not accusing you of that
particularly, but unfortunately there seems to be this type of thing which has answered
tremendous questions and, and fulfilled tremendous ...needs for the community, base
community, brought in experts, spent the money--you got all that information.
The point being is that where are we going to stop allowing fast-track things and, again not
necessarily in your watch, like Pii1ani Village, like Kihei, the runaway communities, and when
are we going to start recognizing some smart growth? I want, I have, do have a question to ask
because I'm not sure of. I was at a general membership meeting where Mike Foley specifically
said by the year 2010 we are going to be looking at a potential doubling of population. So if
that's the case for demographics and statistics-MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MR. KUNIN: --where is, where is our growth going to go? Are we going to be pushed into a situation
where we're going to have to have a Waikapu situation going where it is house after house after
house after house, or are we going to be able to have the ability to have the community that's
going to have self-containment, which how many communities do we have on Maui currently
that is self-contained and not in a renovation situation like Makawao?
So basically you understand where I'm coming from.
Michelle, Jo Anne.. . {chuckle} . ..

I'm asking you guys to, and gals,

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Charmaine.
MR. KUNIN: ... and Charmaine--thank you--I'm asking you all to please just look at our past track
record, look at our current future and where we need to go, and please take a long look and make
a quick decision and based on the fact that it's a 20-year build-out. We have to start acting now.
MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MR. KUNIN: I'm done, yeah.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
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MR. KUNIN: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Ken Jencks, followed by Joe Bertram III.
MR. K. JENCKS: Good morning. My name is Ken Jencks and I'm here to speak as an individual and
as a professional. I've been involved in the planning field for going on 20 years. You've all
heard the saying, we're lucky to live Hawaii. I came to Hawaii in 1993 and it's been a really
great place to live. I met my now wife here and we reside in Wailuku.
You, this board, this commission, you're lucky that you're here at this point in time. You have
the opportunity to be involved in such a great project. I don't give my recommendations easily.
This is the only, second time I've ever recommended a project of this nature. I do it
because ... yes, he's my brother...
ALL: ... (chuckle) . ..
MR. K. JENCKS: ... don't, but don't discount that. You all know Charlie Jencks as an individual as
well. He speaks the truth, he listens, he tries to work with everybody he comes in contact with.
And I urge you to be a part of the bright future of Maui by recommending this project to go
through. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Joe Bertram III, to be followed by Ron Silva.
MR. BERTRAM: Good morning, Council folks. Glad to see you still here and awake and alive .
. . .(chuckle). .. I'm Joe Bertam III. I'm testifying on behalf of Greenways Maui. We're a
nonprofit organization dedicated to walking and biking, and promoting that as the central theme
for development here on Maui. Charlie Jencks' Honua'ulaiWailea 670 has incorporated the basic
concepts that we put into the Kihei General Plan back in 1980 ... , 1998 as part of our Greenway
Open Space Plan. He took the language and mapped it out. So you have a good template to
begin with. It's an excellent template to, to start. I think you're going to find with these hearings
that there's going to be some more issues brought up as far as cultural and, and the other aspects
of this, and I encourage you to use this template to build on it. This can be a good project. It's
starting off excellently with this wonderful template of walking and biking trails and
interconnected open space and neighborhoods. I encourage you to, to take the challenges that
are coming up before you, with looking at species conservation and these types of issues, and
think a little outside the box to really make this the best project it could possibly be. I think what
we're looking at is the, what I keep hearing over and over is working with. We really do want to
get into working with. We can work together, we can find these common elements that we all
agree on and build on that, whether it's, you know, species conservation or any of these things.
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Challenge yourselves and the developer I think: to work together to really, as others have talked
about, making this the best project it could be. Don't be afraid of densities, don't be afraid of
moving things so that to accommodate various other issues that may come up, but always with
the idea that this template works. Walking and biking is fundamental and that open space is an
important part of the, of, of our... of our development, and that we can work to make these
projects the best that we could possibly make them. Thank: you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank: you. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank: you, Chair.
representing Greenways Maui?

Thank: you, Joe, for being here.

You're

MR. BERTRAM: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
and ... discussed the project?

Has your organization and Mr. Jencks' organization met and,

MR. BERTRAM: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You haven't?
MR. BERTRAM: No, I've met with him, but we are, as an organization we have not met with him.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: And so you're in support of the project?
MR. BERTRAM: We're in support of the land use pattern that he's developed for this project.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And has Wailea 670 made any commitments to you or your
organization or any donations?
MR. BERTRAM: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
discussions that you made?

There's no written agreement for any of the commitments or

MR. BERTRAM: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank: you very much.
MR. BERTRAM: You're welcome.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank: you.
MR. BERTRAM: Thank: you.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Ron Silva, to be followed by Lucienne de Naie.
MR. SILVA: Good morning, Chairman, Council Members. I'd like to thank you for the opportunity to
speak. My name is Ron Silva. I'm here to testify on both a personal level and a professional
level.
After following this project for several years, I'd like to commend Mr. Jencks on doing a
phenomenal job on addressing every hurdle that he has been faced with. I think that the outcome
of this project will be only positive on both a personal and professional level. It'll address the
several issues that we're faced as a community and an island.
So at this time, I'd just like to urge you to allow Mr. Jencks to continue to do the phenomenal job
that he has been doing and providing the island with many opportunities that we need. Thank
you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next and last testifier who has signed up is Lucienne de Naie.
MS. de NAIE: Aloha and good morning, Chair Carroll and Members ofthe panel. As usual, I have stuff
to pass out and hopefully you'll find it helpful. My name is Lucienne de Naie. I'm testifying on
behalf of Maui Tomorrow, and it's my understanding that at this point the Council is looking to
have all their questions answered about the project after doing the site visit and the public
hearing in Kihei.
So the first thing that you'll see from our organization is a list of a number of questions that I, I
hope you will ... seriously hope that you will consider getting the answers to, and many of them
have arisen from public testimony. A second item that's being passed out is some newspaper
clippings that kind of go back and forth on the water situation, and it would be good to clarify on
the water source here. There's been various claims made about the water over the years from the
two wells. So it would just be, I think behoove all of us to know exactly what's going on,
whether this water's going to be contaminated by sewage from Maui Meadows as the
developer's consultant, previous to this, claimed in 1992; whether the water is going to be
brackish if it's pumped very much which John Mink said in 1992; whether it should actually be
under County jurisdiction, which Mr. Craddick suggested. There's, there's a lot of food for
thought here, and I think that these might prove useful to you to have a little background
information.
The, the second thing I'd like to address is the, the cultural sites. The larger map being passed
out shows cultural sites that have already been identified by other projects in the Wailea area, and
some of, each of these little dots might represent a whole cluster of things, 10, 15 different, you
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know, structures. So it's not like there's just one place in each dot. What you can see is that it's
very likely that the Wailea 670 lands would be part of the same settlement pattern. In fact,
although elevations similar to that were characterized by archaeologist as a barren zone in the
past, in fact Makena Resort found a whole huge 2-acre village site at exactly that same elevation.
So it really would be worth, I think, for the consultants to the developer to go back in there and
bushwhack and look and see if there are additional sites that should be included in their
preservation plan, and it would be very helpful I think for this body to have a map similar to this
that the consultants would provide that show the relationship of the coast to the mauka sections
because that's how Hawaiians lived was mauka-makai and, of course, that's what would make
sense to, to understand what would be significant to preserve.
As to native plants, I'm sure Dr. Altenberg has addressed that well in his comments, but I just
want to point out that in the earlier review of this when it came from a Community Plan
Amendment at the Maui Planning Commission in January of 1989, the amendment
acknowledged the presence of several native plant species considered rare, uncommon or
depleted, etcetera. And but by the early 1990s that same area that was identified as a potential
preserve was bulldozed, and it was acknowledged by the consultant that it had been bulldozed.
So my thought is, you know, if we had something, we kind of didn't follow-through on it; maybe
we can do a better job on the planning process. This was not on Mr. Jencks' watch or, or the
current partnership's watch, but I really think that we should be asking the questions. It's
significant to find a habitat that's actually functioning still left in South Maui after all the
activities that have been there. These plants really deserve a chance to live where they establish
themselves, and I think that if you were willing to consult experts in this field, you'd find that
that was always the first choice. Relocating them, outplanting them, gathering their seeds--this
is, you know, gathering seeds is great, but you could have them in situ and gather their seeds, and
they could thrive there.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. de NAIE: Thank you. The, the last thing I want to talk about is some of the questions that have to
do about the Land Use Commission... conditions that were set in 1994. I just think we should
clarify, is this project participating in a water quality study monitoring for the nearshore waters?
Has that already been started under former owners? This is a very important point because this is
exactly the site where water streamed into Palauea area a few years ago, and it was said that it
wasn't the fault of the lower development, One Palauea Bay, that these waters were coming from
higher sites. So we really want to make sure that we know about nearshore water quality. I
understand that the drainage systems, you know, are trying to be natural, but we still need to see
what's going on to see if they're working, to see if the drainage basins are working. So this is an
important consideration. Thank you for your time and giving this a very balanced view. I think
we need to look at everything at once ... acknowledging Mr. Jencks has done a lot more work.
There have been many promises made over the years and some ofthem have slipped through the
cracks. So, I think that we'd want to make sure that-MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
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MS. de NAIE: --that's not the case now. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Lucienne. I just briefly went over your questions and I know in
the first part you, you talk about the golf course, but then you also spoke in your verbal
testimony about runoff and the relationship between the coastal water quality and what's running
off the site. Are you concerned at all or have you seen anything in the Environmental Impact
Statement that would address the issues that just go hand in hand with golf course management
and their effect on nearshore waters?
MS. de NAIE: I have not. Although in personal conversations with Mr. Jencks when he met with Maui
Tomorrow, we did discuss whether there could be a non, you know, toxic type regime for weed
control in the golf course area and in the landscape area. I, I think he was taking that under
consideration. So he might, you know, that might be a question that you would want to, to ask.
But definitely the nearshore monitoring, it is not my understanding that this is done regularly in
this area and, you know, we have the Wailea Golf Course as well and its subsidiaries so ... and
we have a lot of landscaping that people are irrigating and fertilizing. So we really need, I think,
to .. .if that has been a promise, that's a condition of the Land Use Commission, we should make
sure that it's implemented. If the State's dragging their feet, let the Council light a fire under
'em.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and with regard to the monitoring, too, because I. .. you know,
and I have to review again some of the comments that have been made, but with regard to
monitoring specifically, have you seen any kinds of controls that if monitoring reveals a certain
outcome, that there's any kind of action?
MS. de NAIE: It is my understanding and, and Maui Tomorrow is consulting with a, a private, you
know, water specialist on, on issues involving this whole coast because we're extremely
dissatisfied with what we're getting from the State and Public Works and so forth--no offense to
anybody if they're in the room, but people just don't seem to have the time or focus to get the
answers. It is my understanding that if you know you have a problem, there are certain things
that you can do to make it less. I don't know if you can make it go away entirely. I mean the,
the best thing is to, you know, not create the impacts that cause the pollution. But, you know,
barring that, what you want to do is really minimize those impacts, and that means taking it
seriously, putting time, money and ethical science into it. And I mentioned that ethical science
because a lot of times people just hire the cheapest person who tells them what they want to hear,
and you, you've all heard folks like that testify in front of you and then later on we go, gee, why
is there a limu bloom here? There's no nitrates getting into the water. We heard from, you know,
expert "A". So that's my answer.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Lucienne, for coming. In this map
that you provided us, what project is this map from?
MS. de NAIE: This is from a survey that was done for the south end of Wailea Golf Course in the late
'90s, I think, maybe '98. I have the original from the Bishop Museum at home. But all, all of
these would be available at the State Historic Preservation Office. So if Mr. Jencks and his
consultants wanted to go and get those surveys and then mailed a map that showed the coastal
sites and the mauka sites together, I just think that would be very helpful, especially since this
has already been to the Planning Commission, there's, there's no other opportunity for the
Cultural Resources Commission to review it. It just seems like we're letting an opportunity pass
here. This is an area that had very intense settlement pattems--Palauea, the famous Palauea
settlement; and Keauhou, which the remnants of are, are Poolenalena; and the controversy over
the Cameron place; and the, the sites at Poolenalena. So, it seems a shame to, you know, repeat
the mistakes of the past.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Have you seen the .. .inventory survey that was done for Wailea
670?
MS. de NAIE: I have, yes, I've reviewed the three different versions of it. You know, the first didn't
really find anything, the first two, and then the, the more later ones had found, identified I think
12 sites and then 6 are slated for preservation. One of those are segments of a trail that actually
may match up to a trail that is in the inventory of the Wailea sites, and that would be interesting
to know.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And are any of them within this little comer of Wailea 670 that
you have on this map?
MS. de NAIE: I have the, the map with me here. My recollection is that most of them are more
mid-range and... they're, they're above where these other sites are, but they're not right down in
the .. .in the absolute corner.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: In the corner.
MS. de NAIE: And, and that comer is the one that's been bulldozed. That's where the native plant
population was noticed by the consultant in the' 80s as well.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Why were there three different inventory surveys done?
MS. de NAIE: The first one didn't show anything. They missed the whole southern half of the property.
They, I guess, didn't even know it existed. The second went through the southern portion of the
property but very, you know, briefly. It's very rugged. It, it. . .let me just use an example, if I
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may digress a moment, take your time. In, in the 11 acres that's proposed for the Keaka project,
I think like 8 sites were identified. When a good, hardworking archaeologist went in, 30 sites
were found, and, and I don't mean just, oh, she found a couple of rocks somewhere. I mean
burials, I mean whole terrace systems ... things that connected to the existing heiau that was
found. When you have the opportunity to really clear and look for things and take the time, you
find a lot more, especially in rugged terrain, and that was a little, 11 acre parcel. So-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thirty additional sites?
MS. de NAIE: Additional sites. Yes, 30 additional sites besides what was there.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So then tell me about the third inventory survey that was done for
Wailea 670?
MS. de NAIE: The third one was ordered by the Land Use Commission. It was a condition of the Land
Use Commission that, that as result, I think, of public testimony that there be a better survey of
the southern portion of the land since it seemed like no one was really surveying it, and that was
done. However, I, I don't want to cast aspersions here, but it was done by the same people who
missed all these sites at, at the Keaka project, the same archaeological consulting team, and they
have a lot of work and they may just get busy and do quick run-throughs and then, you know,
write up their report. I, you know, I don't know. They're not unethical people, but I think that,
you know, when you have a, a busy finn hired to do something like that, they sometimes just
have to give it a lick and a promise.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so the additional 30 sites that were found at Keaka, are any of
those sites within areas that were slated for development by develop-MS. de NAIE: Oh, yes. They, they're going to have to eliminate two buildings. They definitely were in
areas that were slated for development, including multiple prehistoric burials. So, I mean the
fact that someone would just miss that is like, okay.. . (chuckle). .. you know, you're not, you're
not really looking, and the terraces also, the terraces were obvious to anyone who walked
through there, but they weren't. .. --(CHANGE OF TAPE)-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much, Lucienne.
MS. de NAIE: Thanks.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, no one else has signed up to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Is there anyone that wishes to give public testimony at this time, please come
forward. Seeing none, if there's no objection, we will close public testimony.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections .

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR CARROLL: Public testimony is now closed. Members, we're going to take a ten-minute
recess. We will reconvene at ten minutes to 11 :00. We stand in recess. '" (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

10:393.m.

RECONVENE:

10:593.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: .. .(gavel). .. This Land Use Committee meeting of March 15 is now back in
session. Members, we have finished public testimony, and what I'm going to do, we have from
Honolulu ... from the State Department of Transportation, Glenn Yasui. I'm going to call him
down first. And after that, quite a few Members have indicated that from the last meeting they
wished to ask the applicant questions. So after we go down the line and for this meeting, I'm
going to start with Ms. Tavares and go right down to give everybody a chance to ask questions.
Then I'm going to call the applicant down after this because everybody else is from Maui.
MR. YASUI: Good morning.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, thank you for joining us. Do you have any opening statement that
you'd like to make?
MR. YASUI: Good morning, Chair. I'm here to answer any questions you may have concerning State
DOT's position.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. I'll now open the floor.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I have one.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I remember at one time the State plans were to expand this
Piilani Highway from Kihei-Makena towards Ulupalakua. Is the State ... or do you have any
plans in regards to expansion of that road further south towards Makena?
MR. YASUI: Not, not at this time as a State road. Basically, the State highway system ends in the
vicinity of Wailea Ike Drive, I think. By the way, with me is Fred Cajigal. He's our Maui
District Engineer, who probably knows more about this than most of us in this room for... as far
as the State's involvement.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So as far as that, then there's no plans by the State to extend the road in
the near future or 20 years hence?
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MR. YASUI: No.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good morning, sir. You know with
the widening of Piilani Highway from Mokulele to Kilohana, I believe that was considered
interim and a developer was supposed to par ... , further participate in this. Can you, I guess, give
comment as to what the State is going to further expect from the developer?
MR. YASUI: Yeah. There's an agreement done some time before I began my, my tenure. I understood
that what you mentioned was a part of that agreement. Initially, at least two of the developers
paid for the design for the interim improvements as, as sort of like a first installment. Future
work on Piilani Highway to widen it to four lanes full standard is pending. It, it's not, wasn't
meant to assess the developers the full cost of that upgrade to, to standards. But we, we're in the
process of discussing with all three developers in that area how to resolve their, their part in
mitigating traffic in that corridor.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So discussions are still ongoing yet with that?
MR. YASUI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And my next question is related to the traffic study. It was
mentioned in here that it would generate low peak flows with the current proposal of 1,400 units.
Can you give us further or expand on that, how is this possible that there will be, you know, low
traffic flows with, you know, the proposed amount of units? I'm just curious because, you know,
to a person who sees 1,400 units and then they'll see okay, low traffic, low peak traffic flows.
So, I, I just kind of just want to get more, you know, comment from, from I guess the Department
or whoever did the traffic study, how, how they made that determination?
MR. CAJIGAL: I really don't know the answer to that, but it really depends on how they, it goes back
to how they gen ... , they project their, their traffic in terms of... the type of. . .in other words, I'm
talking about the traffic generated. If a certain generator--and in fact this is one of those things
where we had kind of a problem with them because they, they assumed certain assumptions that
were not in, in agreement with. So this is one of the reasons why they are going back and
redoing their traffic study, the three of them actually, Wailea, Makena and Honolua [sic],
Honua'ula, to, to go back and look at the projections and they come back to us again and look at
it.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So they're going to make another reassessment ofthis-MR. CAJIGAL: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --and then go back to you folks?
MR. CAJIGAL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chainnan.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Mateo, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chainnan, thank you very much. And just to continue off on the
question that Mr. Molina had just asked a minute ago regarding your existing discussion with
the, with the developers in tenns of reaching a result. You have any idea as, as to what kind of
timetable you're looking at in coming up with a resolve versus having the discussion continue in
an indefinite manner?
MR. YASUI: We, we recently--yesterday, I believe--transmitted a letter to the Council Chair on our
current progress. Essentially we rec ... , we about two weeks ago met with all three developers
and agreement to coordinate all three traffic impact analysis reports where, where it was agreed
to. What that's going to do is they're going to detennine through their, their analysis what
percentage each developer needs to contribute for improvements, highway improvements. Now
the highway improvements that we're focusing on is from Kilohana to Wailea Ike, and our intent
is to have the developers fully pay for that widening to four lanes full standard, and that, that's
going to be a more immediate benefit to the State and the, the public rather than trying to look
into a future unquantifiable regional transportation impact. So, I, I think our agreement is going
to be in the direction that what they do between Kilohana and Wailea Ike will fulfill that
requirement for that regional transportation impact.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.
MR. YASUI: And others would, would address from Kilohana to, back to Mokulele for the full standard
upgrade.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And, and once that agreement is made, the State will take
responsibility in trying to initiate whatever, whatever assistance available in tenns of getting
these developers to actually initiate the project?
MR. YASUI: Between Kilohana and Wailea Ike?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah.
MR. YASUI: We, we'll set a timetable in our agreement for a perfonnance.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So your, your, the State's role then is just to work on mitigating
the traffic issues or, or is the State going to take a lead in trying to expedite say permits required
or meeting certain requirements that they need?
MR. YASUI: We, we certainly would like to do that. We haven't gotten to that stage yet. I imagine that
wherever we can expedite the project development we'll, we'll assist.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So as the developers commit to contributing to doing the
project, the State will commit in trying to expedite the process that they need to get the job done?
MR. YASUI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. First, Mr. Chair, I wanted to just find out from Staff if
the Committee has received the communication that Mr. Yasui has talked about, and if we can
have that identified inside our record. 'Cause I know we got three binders. I'm looking at the
end of it since it seemed like it was submitted recently and I don't know-CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Yes. The Committee did receive a letter dated March 14, so yesterday, a two-page letter
from the DOT.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: This is Parks and Recreation.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's right before the large packet of-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. I don't have it in my... but anyway, I'll figure, I, I'll yield. And
just to verify then-CHAIR CARROLL: One moment, we'll bring you a copy.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. We're going, Mr. Yasui, we're just going to continue
on the same line of questioning. Mine is more the timetable. Because you stated that the, the
timetable for bringing Piilani Highway out of interim status and into full standard, a four lane,
does the State have a time line at this point what we can anticipate?
MR. YASUI: We .. .it's not in the near-term planning horizon, near term meaning the next three years.
It's not shown on the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: The so-called, the STIP, yeah.
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MR. YASUI: Yeah. We, we're working on a six-year STIP, a three-year addition to that first three years.
In it the, the draft that I've seen also does not include that upgrading.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: On the six year?
MR. YASUI: Yes. And what, what I would recommend is when we do the up, updating of the
Long-Range Transportation Plan, which we hope to start soon, that you, you let your priorities be
known in that process.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Let, let me ask you this then. And, and, Mr. Chair, if I'm going too far
out, please feel free to lasso me back in. The reason I ask is for, for Mokulele to Kilohana being
an interim status, whether or not we have these projects it already is in that interim status with
the intent of it being brought to full standard to accommodate the existing populous there? Is
that correct?
MR. YASUI: Yes. When I say full standards, we're not increasing the capacity. It stays four lanes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I understand that. So is there any discussion of it going beyond the
existing capacity into a greater capacity? Is that discussion even farther off into the future, if
any?
MR. YASUI: For us as far as State Highway is concerned, the existing rights-of-way is not adequate to
take more than four lanes. We, we can't do a six-lane highway through the existing
infrastructure. There needs to be, I, I guess, a regional traffic circulation master plan that's going
to look at all the, the demands, all the traffic attractions and generations and then determine what
you need to accommodate that demand. There, there are other parallel roads in that corridor,
Kihei, South Kihei Road-COUNCILMEMBER KANE: North-South Collector.
MR. YASUI: --North-South Collector which is still in the process of being built and, and Piilani. Those
three taken together mayor may not be adequate for future demand.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Kane. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Thank you for being here. One ofthe questions that was asked
in a handout that we received is in regard to the emergency access, and I know that generally you
don't get involved with all of the feeder roads that come off. But because we have this issue
always coming off of State highways, and particularly in that area when it's fire or emergency,
are there any stub outs or any other areas where you would be planning as part of this highway
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expansion? Is there any area where you would have some type of evacuation route planned that
would connect up or that could be connected to the State highway?
MR. YASUI: Right now we are in the initial stage of design for the Kihei-Upcountry Road which would
connect in the vicinity of the High Tech Center. That would be-MR. CAJIGAL: Kaonoulu.
MR. YASUI: --Kaonoulu, he says.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Kaonoulu-MR. YASUI: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --right.
MR. YASUI: So, you know, that's one of the major, that would be one of the major evacuation routes in
addition to Mokulele, Mokulele Highway.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And I know that that is, you know, I mean when I think of
let's sayan evacuation route, I know there's not that many mauka routes and, of course, that's
pretty close to the intersection or let's say it's closer to Mokulele than it would be going farther
out. But I, I just, I'm concerned, though, ifthat's a major one, where would you see another one
coming in to help the folks that are closer towards the Wailea area?
MR. YASUI: Okay. There, there had been much discussion as to the connection point for
Kihei-Upcountry, and I'm not sure if you were involved in it, but there, there were alternatives as
you come down from mauka.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I know there was the "Y-Way".
MR. YASUI: Right, and one goes to Lipoa. Yeah, I guess you may know that. The select, selected
alignment connected to Kaonoulu.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. YASUI: Lipoa, from that "y" to Lipoa could be a separate future project. It may not be a State
Highway. It could be some, built by others, but again I mentioned the Long-Range Land
Transportation Plan Update. That's a good time to, again, to let it be known that perhaps that
connection should be added to that long-range plan.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I know that one of the other concerns, of course, that has
come up repeatedly, even with the interim widening, you know, which was not to a standard that
really can accommodate all of the transportation needs. One of the issues, though, was always
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the bicyclists coming along in the bike route. Because we're still concerned, I don't see too
many people on the highway at all riding their bicycles, and I suppose it's with good reason
because the bike lanes really don't seem adequate. Are there any plans at all to provide for other
modes of transportation whether it's these new little, you know, some ... and I don't know if they
have them that much in South Maui, but a lot of these little cars that we have, they're sort of like
golf carts, but they're smart cars and they're high energy or energy efficient vehicles. Would you
have any idea whether that is going to be able to be accommodated in the near future or with any
of these plans that we're talking about?
MR. YASUI: Not of the plans that I know of now. Again, that long-range update might be a window of
opportunity to, to insert those ideas, the long-range, you know, vision. I'm not sure. We do have
a document called Bike Plan Hawaii. It, it's a master plan for all bikeways in the State that, you
know, that we would manage, and I'm not. .. often I'm not sure whether Piilani Highway or
North-South Collector was-MR. CAJIGAL: North-South Collector Road would be-MR. YASUI: North-South Collector is the designated bike route. So ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So more than likely then you would not have any plans to
accommodate any bicycles or any ofthese alternative vehicles on the side ofthe roadway and not
on the highway?
MR. YASUI: Typically what happens--this is just practical stuff--when we do a full standard upgrade,
we, we need to put in shoulders, full shoulders, and we cannot prevent the bicyclists from using
it and, you know, essentially they're safe alternatives, although we couldn't sign them as bike,
you know, bike routes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Now the other question. I, I think the signalization has been
improved, at least I'm hoping it's been improved. I don't travel that route all the time, but I have
noticed that there appears to be some improvement along Piilani. What other signalization or
other, whether it's a roundabout or some kind of access onto the highway that might not involve
another signal, what kinds of things are planned and has there been any kind of discussion with
regard to this particular development as to their contribution for those particular features along
the highway?
MR. CAJIGAL: I think I can answer that one. One of the requirements for a Wailea project I think is
MF, I don't know, MF9 or MF19. At Okolani Drive, one of the requirements in there is for them
to signalize that intersection to, to facilitate that. .. especially the turning movements coming
from Maui Meadows as well as coming from the bottom.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But there's no discussion with this developer or this particular
development to address because obviously they're going to be adding into the stream of people
that would be traveling Piilani Highway. Would they be contributing towards any other features
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that would help mitigate the slowing down or at least to help, I guess, keep up the level of
service that's currently in operation on the highway?
MR. CAJIGAL: The .. .1ike Glenn mentioned earlier, their contribution would be basically between
Kilohana and Wailea Ike. In other words, we, we'll ... they're just going to widen that highway
and that will relieve them of their regional, regional share.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and-MR. CAJIGAL: As for the, the rest of the highways then, somehow we're either going to have to either
do it or have some other developers do it.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: As far, though, as the contribution that you're speaking about, when
we received and you saw the presentation there's a contribution let's say of $5,000 per unit, that's
irrespective of whatever is being required by you? Is that your understanding?
MR. CAJIGAL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I'm sorry, sir, I didn't get your name.
MR. YASUI: Glenn Yasui.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yasui. Thank you, Mr. Yasui, for being here today. You
mentioned that, you know, in our Community Plan it shows that the Piilani Highway should be
extended, and back when this project was originally conceived, there's even a strip of land that
was set aside--part of it is owned by DOT, is my understanding--for the extension of Piilani
Highway. And so now you're saying that the State has no plans. Does that mean that you have
totally abanded [sic], abandoned any plan to extend Piilani Highway?
MR. YASUI: I'm not sure what you mean by abandoned, but that's not part of the long-range plan at
this moment. The State highway system ends just a tad bit away from Wailea Ike, just, just east
of that, and we do own that rights-of-way. And the initial two-lane project, as Freddie was the
project engineer, they, we did, State did grade about 1,500 feet past that intersection. So there is
a rough roadbed, I believe. But we, at this point in time it does not serve a destination, so we
didn't improve it. In the future should the developers choose to do their own road, a private
road, they would need to connect to that, that. .. that so-called stub, that 1,500 foot extension
from Wailea Ike, but it may not be a State highway. If anything at, at the most it'll be a County
road.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
currently own?

But the State would allow the use of that portion that they

MR. YASUI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Because my concern, Mr. Yasui, is that I would hate to see all the
traffic for Makena-Wailea, south be routed on Wai ... , Makena Alanui because that's a very
resort-oriented road and it's very windy, and it's not necessarily banked very well, and it's not
conducive to commuter traffic at all.
MR. YASUI: At that point, Wailea Ike, the, any road beyond that point will not meet the criteria for
inclusion in the State highway system. That's, that's our problem.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So is it safe to say that the State's choice for the Kihei-Upcountry
road has eliminated the possibility of ever having an Up country connection from that end of
South Maui from the Piilani extension, which was the original intention?
MR. YASUI: Yes. Oh, go ahead, Freddie.
MR. CAJIGAL: Yes. Councilmember Anderson, the, one of the .. .in fact that extension was considered
as one of the ten alternatives when we looked at that Kihei-Upcountry, and right off the bat it got
tossed out when they started evaluating all this alignment, and I think it got, it didn't make the
first cut. From there we narrowed it down to, to three, three alignments which was started in the,
in the EIS of the Kihei-Upcountry.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. I, I'm not going to really get into that because that's not our
issue so much, but. .. you know, I could ask you why did you eliminate it since-MR. CAJIGAL: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --it was a really good evacuation route, and we were told by Civil
Defense only a month ago or so that should there be a reason to evacuate Kihei, the highway
does not have capacity to allow everyone to evacuate on the highway to get to Kaonoulu to get to
the Up country highway extension. So anybody that's living south of Kaonoulu or any distance
south from Kaonoulu might as well just put on their tennis shoes, leave their car at home and
start running. So I'm concerned because, you know, I think there needs to be, that needs to be
the foremost consideration when you're planning a community that dead-ends with no other exit
and we're potentially adding thousands of people down at this end of South Maui with no safe
exit route should there be any kind of natural disaster or a fire, a major fire. So, I would like to
see that you folks address the safety issue about evacuation routes for the South Maui area. Why
should we dead-end another community? I mean are we going to tum this in to another Kih ... ,
Lahaina where anything that happens you're, you're stuck? So, I know you guys can't answer
that, but I just want to voice that concern because I would like to see something in this project
because the Piilani extension goes right through the middle of this, the planned extension, goes
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right through the middle of this parcel, and in our Community Plan the intention was for it go
mauka once it gets through the project. So, I would like to see you guys--I know you're meeting
with them--to encourage some extension of that roadway to allow traffic to go, to allow another
route for people from the southern part of Wailea and Makena rather than having to get on
Makena Alanui and Wailea Ike and go through this very congested, little, meandering resort road
to get out of there. There needs to be some alternative for them for safety reasons. So, I know
you are in discussions with them to coordinate these various traffic impact analysis reports--and
thank you very much for doing that, by the way, because as you stated in your letter that each of
these traffic reports were very disparate in their analysis, so that you could not coordinate them
together and have a really comprehensive traffic analysis for that area. And I really appreciate
that, excuse me, because it does us no good to have three different traffic impact analysis that
aren't really reflective of the other. And so I really appreciate you doing that. It shows that the
State is paying attention to our needs down here, and I do very much appreciate that. So in your
discussions, I believe you have ongoing discussions with them, you've met just recently,
February 2nd , and then I understand that. .. we were told by Wai ... , Wailea 670 that the timeframe
for triggering the initiation of the improvements will be determined through a consolidated traffic
report being done at the present time by the traffic engineers for all three development entities.
An agreement formalizing the partnership between State DOT and the development entities
committing to the scope of work for the improvement of this section of the highway is in its draft
stage and will be formalized shortly following, followed by an agreement between the
development parties providing structure to their partnership and their financial participation in
these improvements. Would you be willing to share the draft agreement with this Committee?
After all, in approving this project we must find that there will be no adverse impact, and I don't
know how we can make that determination if we don't have an updated and comprehensive
traffic impact report that shows the impacts will be mitigated. And I don't know how long it's
going to take for you to finalize any kind of an agreement, but whatever it is you are doing, you
are doing on behalf of the public, and I think that needs to be public information. So, I'm, I'm
requesting that you provide us a copy with the draft stage of this agreement so we can see where
you're heading, and, and as representatives here of the pUblic .. .I would like to have the
opportunity to see to it that the agreement is done in the best interest of the public. And I, I think
that's a fair request. I mean I don't think these agreements should be negotiated strictly behind
closed doors. We are negotiating a public roadway and potentially giving them a public
entitlement. So would it be possible to get a copy of that draft agreement. .. at the draft stage that
you're in?
MR. YASUI: We, we haven't received anything yet. We'll, we'll ...we'll discuss it because I don't, I
don't know the parameters in which the, the developers and the State is working within that
agreement whether or not-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Were you present at the meeting?
MR. YASUI: Yes. --(CHANGE OF TAPE)-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: " .State (inaudible)?
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MR. YASUI: Oh, there, there's no details beyond what I mentioned. There's no prescnptlve,
prescriptive process that's identified as yet. Like I, what you described from ... Charlie's, you
know, presentation is about all that we got so far. So it's going to take more meetings to, to
hammer it out and to, especially for time1ines and responsibilities of parties. So there's more to
it than just, you know, a simple agreement. But I'm sure, you know, it's not. . .1 mean it's not a
secret agreement, and in fact I don't think it's going to be much more complex than what we
described as far as, as far as the, the core provisions of the agreement is concerned. If, if you
look into suggesting adding additional burdens on the developers or vice versa on the State, that
might generate more discussion within our group.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And would it be possible to look at some kind of--I mean it
doesn't do any good to have this roadway right through the project if it just kind of dead-ends. Is
there, is there a possibility that you folks could look at extending or requiring an extension of
that for access and, and an additional scape route?
MR. YASUI: Well, you know, to be frank with you, I, I believe that's a Coun ... , that's going to be a
Land Use Commission or County action. Right, right now the State highway ends at Wailea Ike
and we, we have, we won't be able, given the present condition, we won't be able to extend the
State highway system beyond that point and we would not be able to require anybody to do
something outside of our State highway system. Another, another authority is going to have to
do that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I appreciate that, Mr. Yasui, but. ..
MR. YASUI: We, we .. .1, I. . .it's not in this letter, but-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: .. .1 don't necessarily agree with that.
MR. YASUI: With our, with our discussion with the developers, especially Makena, we specifically
noted that from Wailea Ike .. .if extension of the road is performed, it will not be at the State
expense.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm just looking at it in terms of public safety and traffic
mitigation on, on behalf of the public and as, you know, State highways even though you don't
own the land, I mean you didn't own the land when it was first set aside and the State stepped in
and said we need this right-of-way. So, see what I'm saying?
MR. YASUI: Yeah. The difference there is it, it is on the designated State highway system so, you
know, that's why we could do that. But beyond that point, you know, we, we don't, it's beyond
our authorities.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, but it was there with the intention to be extended. So
anyway, that is a big, a big concern of mine. And then to move on the other--oh, when might you
expect a final agreement?
MR. YASUI: Oh.. .I can only tell you shortly, I would expect within a month. I, I believe they're close
to hammering something out.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. I think that it's vital that we have that in front of us before
we make any decision. The other thing I had a question on is ...right now from Kilohana to
Wailea Ike there is .. .I would say a level of service "F" during peak commuter time. I live right
down there. I enter Pii ... , Piilani Highway at Kilohana, and if you happen to be trying to enter
Piilani at Kilohana, which has no traffic signal, during hotel commuter time, it is bumper to
bumper to bumper to bumper and you just can't get on the highway. And so what people are
doing who live in Maui Meadows--you know there are two entryways or entryways to Wai .. ,
Maui Meadows, Mikioi is the mauka name of the roadway which is the same as Kilohana. Okay.
It's the same intersection, just a different name on the Wailea side, it's called Kilohana. Okay.
South or north of that there is also an entryway into Wailea which is signalized, and so people
who are trying to get out of Wailea, I mean trying to get out of Maui Meadows or trying to get
into Maui Meadows for that matter who live down at the Mikioi end, they have to travel through
Maui Meadows and go to the other--I'm sorry, I can't think of the name of it right now--the other
ingress/egress to, to utilize the signal to get onto the highway. So that is the current condition.
So, I would say it's a level of service "F", easy. So what are the plans to signalize Kilohana and
Piilani?
MR. CAJIGAL: I can answer that. I think Mikioi is the mauka roadway and Okolani is the, is the one
that goes down to, to Kihei. That is the one I mentioned earlier that will be signalized-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. CAJIGAL: --hopefully soon. In fact, we reviewed the ...we are currently reviewing the traffic
signal plans for, for that area. We expect approval of the plan shortly.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Approval of plans to signalize ... ?
MR. CAJIGAL: Of, of the traffic signal plans.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: And so then that means how soon-MR. CAJIGAL: And then they'll, they'll go ahead and build it.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: So we could expect a signal at Mikioi and Piilani within... ?
MR. CAJIGAL: Hopefully within a year, a year, year and a half.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. So ... as far as DOT is concerned, the only mitigation that
this project and the other developers in the area are required to do is to widen the highway to
four lanes to, to normal standards, not just the restriping?
MR. YASUI: No, it'd be a full standard design which we, we would need to approve, and what happens
after they construct it, within that agreement, all facilities will be turned over to the State,
including the new rights-of-way limits.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And do you have any kind of ballpark date anticipation when this
would be required?
MR. YASUI: Not, not at this time. It's going to be part of the negotiated agreement, the detailed
negotiated agreement. We certainly would like to see it happen soon, sooner than later. But we,
we understand, you know, they do have financial considerations and all that kind of stuff. But
given the best of all situations, we'd like to see it done soon.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so you'll put a date certain?
MR. YASUI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Yasui, appreciate it.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Since Mr. Hokama has no questions, Members, we did want to call the applicant
down over here. But I will ask since we are going not to have him tomorrow even if we recess
this meeting, is there any more questions that anyone has? We'll start with Mr. Pontanilla again
and go down.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. This is away from the project. When will the Mokulele
Highway improvements be completed between Puunene Avenue to Piilani Highway?
MR. CAJIGAL: The last phase is going to go out to bid hopefully during the summer, around
thereabout, and I would think about 2008 ... for the entire, the last phase to be completed.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: 2008?
MR. CAJIGAL: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. CAJIGAL: Then you would have a, a (inaudible) section all the way through.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chainnan. For either Mr. Cajigal or Mr. Yasui.
Included in the discussions with the developer, have you folks ...has, have there been
discussions about providing assistance for the North-South Collector Road as well?
MR. YASUI: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No. Okay, I'm just curious. So nothing ever carne up?
MR. YASUI: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, just curious. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Anyone else have any questions at this time? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and this is always something I tend to forget, but because the
drainage always, you know, is a concern and particularly as it goes under the State highways, I
know we've had several developments that the public ends up having to pay for the drainage
improvements. In your discussions will you be having any analysis done as to what drainage
impacts would be required that are directly related to this development and what that would do in
tenns of their traversing of the highway?
MR. YASUI: Yes, typically for a design a drainage report is, is developed that'll address all of those
questions. Whatever you need, regardless of the source of the, the water traversing the highway,
it would have to be accommodated at a minimum of what we call a 50-year flood frequency and
IOO-year flood analysis to detennine if there's a IOO-year flood, if the backwater is going to
affect any improvements.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And with regard to who pays for those improvements, would
that have to be solely borne by the people creating the impacts or is the public going to have to
pay?
MR. YASUI: For, for that section between Kilohana and Wailea Ike, the, the three developers will share
in the cost to do all the work.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. YASUI: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And how about anything that's outside but that's also related to
potential runoff in the area that they won't be paying for?
MR. YASUI: If it's not related to the highway, then I do not know.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and the only thing I would ask is that anyone--and I
don't care who it is, whether it's this company or another company--any impacts that are
created ...that impact, whether it's State or, you know, our facilities, they have to mitigate that.
So as a part of your discussion I would really hope that even though it may be an additional
expense, that you would please address that issue because otherwise we're going to end up
having to pay, and because there are substantial floodplains in that area and with all of the other
development, we don't really know sometimes how that's going to operate and there's also been
tremendous degradation of the waters, and everything runs downhill. So we, we're hoping that
you'll do your, on behalf of the public anyway, do your best to really address those concerns
because I don't want to see that continue to be a problem or at least not worsen the problems that
already exist. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for Mr. Yasui? Hearing none, thank you for joining us
today.
MR. YASUI: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, with no objection, I'm going to call the applicant forward.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: The applicant, please come to the podium. And we will start, again, from my right
with Mr. Pontanilla and work our way down. Could you identify yourself for the record, please?
MR. JENCKS: The name is Charlie Jencks, I'm the Owner's Representative for Wailea 670 Associates.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. One of the testifiers, Lee Altenberg, gave us a
testimony in regards to some findings on the south end of the development. If you were to
provide more density north of that particular area, would that be something that you folks can
take a look at and try to preserve the south end ofthat particular project? ... And I, and I thought
I understand will be the 20 percent of the properties that are being considered for development.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Jencks.
MR. JENCKS: Mr. Chair. I think that's something that we would definitely consider we take a look at.
But I, honestly, truly, I think you have to look at Mr. Altenberg's claims within the context
of.. .I'll use the term "better science". We've looked at the area in detail. We have a tremendous
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amount of support, professional support from U.H. on what we're proposing. So I think:... what,
what I'd rather say to you is let us come back to you with a plan that shows how we would
address the preservation issue. And part of the, what we're trying to accomplish here is a, is a
project that has a relatively low density. On a gro ... , on a gross basis this project has a density of
about 2.1 units per acre, which is lower, for example, than Maui Meadows. Shifting density
around I think: is, is counterproductive 'cause it creates other grading issues, it creates other
drainage issues, it creates circulation issues. Let us come back to you with a plan that shows
how within the context of our science and, and study how we could address that issue and give
you some options.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank: you. Chair, that's all I had.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank: you, Mr. Pontanilla. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank: you, Mr. Chairman. Good morning, Mr. Jencks. I know
you're a very busy man, to say the least. First of all, your, your target group that you're shooting
for, I would presume you're looking at, I guess, placing an emphasis on going for current Maui
residents or are you marketing the project outside of Maui?
MR. JENCKS: Well, the, the ...we included in our communication to Coun ... , the Chair Carroll's
Office a summary on affordable housing that identifies what we have put forth, and we've
discussed this with, with Councilmember Mateo on a number of occasions early on how we
would qualify people for the affordable component, and we've included in there, for example, a
residency requirement. We've also included in there a requirement that they couldn't own
property for the three years prior to closing. So indeed for that sector we are focusing on that
and we think: that's a very important thing to do. In addition to the 100 percent and less market,
very restrictive resale limitations, with the balance of the project certainly offered to Maui
residents, absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. Okay. And, and on that restriction, I, I think: it was one of
your February letters, you were looking at a three- to ten-year restriction?
MR. JENCKS: The 100 percent and less was 10 years owner-occupancy requirement and resale
limitations, and then the 120 was 5 as I recall, and the 140 was 3.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. JENCKS: So it escalated out.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And that was made in discussions with, I guess, the Housing
Director or was that just something that, that, that you're throwing out or is that. .. came with the,
in discussions with other folks?
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MR. JENCKS: We, we did talk to, to Ms. Lee about that and we went back and within our, within the
project team thought about ways that we could address what we see to be an issue. For example,
the spiraling speculation, I've always believed that occupancy requirements are a good way to at
least stabilize a particular marketplace over a period of time, and through practical experience in
the industry provided those options.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And just for the record, this project, there's going to be
restrictions, no transient vacation rental units or nothing like that?
MR. JENCKS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Molina. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Mr. Jencks, good morning.
MR. JENCKS: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Just to follow, follow up with your 20-year build-out projection-MR. JENCKS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
phases?

--would you ... 20 years would, would be indicative of how many

MR. JENCKS: Well, that's a really good question. I would say probably a half dozen different phases.
The first phase would be major infrastructure: water; sewer; roadways; the golf course, which is
a key... element of the value to create the money to pay for a lot of this stuff we gotta do. I
would say, you know, multiple phases, not sure today how many. I would say a good half dozen.
I think one of the things that, that keys us here in Maui County is there's a limitation on what we
can do every, every month in terms of construction activity, and that takes us out to 20 years.
The biggest construction company on Maui today, Goodfellow Brothers, can only do about a
million dollars a month in salary. They just don't have the ability to do much more than that. So
the 20 years reflects (a) the ability to get what you can get done in a month or a year's worth of
time, but also what you can actually put on the market and sell for housing. So that's, it's .. .it's a
good 20 years and multiple phases.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And in, in terms of getting the homes built, the affordable units
built-MR. JENCKS: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --this apparently would be in, in somewhere in the middle number of
your six phases, somewhere in your third, fourth phase?
MR. JENCKS: Actually our proposal, Council Member, is to build the affordable component. If the
affordable component is 30 percent, that's 420 units, those units would be built. .. every time I
build a market rate unit, I would build and have available an affordable unit. So at the time
there's 840 units in that project, half of them would be affordable and half of them would be
market rate-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.
MR. JENCKS: --upfront.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And you did reference the, the restrictions for the affordables
regarding owner-occupant-MR. JENCKS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --the 100, 100 percent and below, that was 10; 120 was 5; and above
that was 3 years. Was there any, any rationale in the 120 to 140 in, in those number of years in
order to keep it affordable?
MR. JENCKS: We've been watching the market in, in Wailuku, for example. Homes that were sold in
the Wailuku Project District in.. .I think it's Ohia, they tried a three-year occupancy requirement
and what they've seen as a practical matter--it, it was a three-year occupancy limit requirement
and if they sold prior to that, they split 50 percent of the equity with the County. We've
seen--and my wife, Ilsa Mitchell, is, is, was the sales agent for Towne and she proposed that
program--it worked very well to slowdown the speculatory aspects of real estate. So, I used that
and expanded on that as a way to level out that tendency of people to sell their property. So it
seems to be the three years that worked, I think at five years it'll work, and at ten years it
certainly will work.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And I'm gonna, I'm just gonna be blunt and ask you a specific
question and I, I expect the same, the same response.
MR. JENCKS: You got it.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: When we went out to the site visit and when we listened to the
evening [sic] in Kihei, a good number of the people who came out to support your projects were
realtors. My concern is the issue of flipping. The, the issue of them being able to buy the units
and inflate the cost in, in resales. You're, you're aware of this because we all are, you know.
So-MR. JENCKS: I live with it.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. So, so what is your interest in being able to prevent this
from happening so that--you know, we hear all the accolades, we hear the accolades of, of one of
the best projects that any developer can provide to this County, we hear the total number of units
you're going to be offering to us on, on an affordable basis. The flipping escalates cost of
housing in specific districts. What is your intention of helping to prevent this to keep the, the
costs more on, on an equitable basis?
MR. JENCKS: Well, I think on the, in the affordable component we've taken a good stab at stopping
that activity with the ten, five, and three year. Now if you're suggesting to me, Council Member,
that we extend that program into the market rate, that's fine as well. I think we can demonstrate,
I think the market will demonstrate that occupancy requirements that are reasonable do have an
effect on the speculation in the marketplace. And so we've got it in the affordable component
and there's nothing wrong with putting it in the market component.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good morning, Mr. Jencks. Thank you for being
here.
MR. JENCKS: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: One of the primary, I guess, issues that continues to come up with, with
various entities is the water component within your project. You folks being consistent in stating
that you're going to provide your own water system-MR. JENCKS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --and I guess, you know, we received various pieces of information that,
that cast, I guess, a shadow on the integrity of that system. So could you either point to us in our
three folders here anything that is I would say recent within the last year that would provide us
an updated status of the integrity of the system, and if not, if you can respond to, since it's now a
matter of public record, specifically Ms. de Naie came up and provided us with
documents ... statements from Mr. John Mink regarding the, his comments about the system or
wells. My point being if you can just help us get clarity on the integrity of that water system that
you folks are proposing. And, and I would think it would probably be best if you just provided
this Committee with the most recent update and something that you can sign off on and, and get
to us so that we have something in front of us when we continue the discussion.
MR. JENCKS: Absolutely. What I'll do is let me just summarize what the resources are. We have two
wells on-site today that were dug in the early '90s and they're, I believe, a 12-inch casing. They
each have pumps installed and those wells are tested on a monthly basis to make sure that the
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pumps operate correctly. The, the 24-hour run tests that were done, that was done awhile back
indicated 1 million gallons a day total out of both wells, total, 1 million gallons a day.
Qualitatively, the water was very high quality. I can provide to this Committee the water quality
information. I can tell you that based upon those pump tests the chloride levels were, as I recall,
80 milligrams per liter in one well and I think it was 130 milligrams per liter in the other well,
which puts them in the potable range. There is no issue with silica, silica in the wells, and at the
time they were tested there was no issue with regard to any bacteria in the wells either. The
additional source that we are able to create is located north of Maui Meadows and a, and a
Source Development Agreement with Haleakala Ranch in the Kihei-Makena Community Plan
District. Wells have been dug in that area below the 600-foot elevation. I was a part ofthat, that
activity. Those wells provide very good quality water. A 6-inch casing is providing 300,000
gallons a day with a small pump and very high quality water, no silica, which is a treatment issue
if, if you run into that issue, no bacteria. A matter of fact, these wells are located very close to
the Kihei Wastewater Reclamation Facility.
So what I'm telling you is the water quality in the area is very high, the water may very well be
brackish that we, that we discover, and the wells that are on-site may tum brackish after they're
pumped. That is fine. We are prepared to treat the water to a potable standard to provide the
service to the people in the project. I will provide to the Council Committee all the most current
water quality data so you have that in your file.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. And the other question I have, Mr. Chair, is ... as one of the
many people that you have reached out to and interacted with the groups, one of 'em was Maui
Tomorrow which was acknowledged by Ms. de Naie.
MR. JENCKS: Vb-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: She provided us with a list of questions and I believe in a previous
communication to the Committee she stated that although you folks have sat down and you've
been very open to sitting down and going back and forth with issues, that she felt that there were
some issues that there, they have yet to be resolved, and I think she's attempted to provide us
with the various questions. I would ask you to get a copy of the questions, if you haven't already
gotten that, and then provide the Committee with feedback to those questions, and then we can at
that point decide what is clear and what still remains unresolved.
MR. JENCKS: That be true.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And, and I think, yeah, that helps us.
MR. JENCKS: That's fine. Be happy to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Mr. Jencks.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Members, it is three minutes to now. The Chair would like to ask the Members if
they would consider recessing this meeting until 3:30 p.m., Thursday, in these Chambers, and my
intent is to continue, start off with Ms. Johnson, where we left off and to continue as long as we
have quorum to ask the applicant and also we will have the representatives from Housing, Water,
Public Works, and Parks, and to go as far as we can. And as a reminder to the Members and the
public, this is not a decision-making meeting. It has been posted as being not a decision-making
meeting. The entire purpose of these meetings are so we can gather information and get answers.
Is there any objection to recessing to this time? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes, Mr. Chair. I, I think that Ms. Johnson and I should have our
opportunity to ask questions also, and I'm sure both of us will be brief because we have a 1:30
meeting, we all need to have lunch. But we've already had two meetings now and two
presentations from Mr. Jencks without an opportunity to get any clarification. And I would beg
the indulgement [sic], indulge ... , indulgence of the Committee to give us at least ten minutes so
we can finish this line of questioning.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chair, personally, I have no objections with the request of
Ms. Anderson. But to respond to you regarding the recess, I will not be available on Thursday
afternoon. I will be, I'll be in transit off-island. So because it's not a, not a decision-making
meeting and because I've had my opportunity and I know that I have all the freedom to provide
additional questions to the Committee to send out to the respective responders, you know, I
hope ...just so you know, I don't, I will be a problem as far as quorum is concerned. So, I hope
that you can achieve quorum without my presence.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Is there anyone else that could not attend? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I would only be available for a brief period of time. So if the
meeting convenes at 3:30, I would have to leave by 4 o'clock. So, I would only be available for
half an hour.
CHAIR CARROLL: Anyone else?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I also have a conflict, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Pardon?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I said I also have a conflict. I may be able to make some
adjustments and be here for a short period, but I won't know that until I make a call.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright, if there's no objections .. .I'm really reluctant to go after 12 o'clock. It is
inconsiderate of many people, including our Staff. However, if there are no objection, I will
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hon ... , honor Ms. Anderson's request. I will give five minutes to Ms. Johnson and five minutes
to Ms. Anderson, at which time we will recess this meeting. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm just going to, you know, try to be really brief. My question has
to do with the affordable component because in all of the documentation I've got I've added
up .. .I guess it's 40 percent single-family, 60 percent multi-family, with 25 percent affordable in
one document that I have. Then, I have 30 percent affordable with the same mix in another
document, and then I have supplemental documentation which is contained in an affordable
housing summary that just totally confuses me because it adds up to a total of 165 percent. So at
some point could we have a clarification ... --(CHANGE OF TAPE)-- ... documents and find
out what really we're looking at for affordable?
MR. JENCKS: Be happy to summarize that. The most current summary you have in your package at
30 percent is the affordable component, the 40 to 60 is the overall project. That 40 percent, 30
percent component fits within those categories, but I'll be happy to break it down for you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And because your breakout of 100 percent or less and then
120 percent and then 140 percent of median income ... because we've had statistical data
provided to us in past meetings, and I know Ms. Anderson has made an issue of this too, the
demographic, I believe, is that 70 percent of our local population make 50 percent or less of the
median income. They... pardon ... ?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Seventy percent is a-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --hundred percent or below.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So 70 percent, I guess, is 100 percent or below. How does
this square with--and you don't have to give me an answer now--but how is the demographic that
we're dealing with served by your mix of housing units? That's one question. And then my
other questions have to do with the density, 2.1 units per acre being a smart growth objective. I,
I just want to understand how the lower density is really a smart growth component, if you could
explain that at some point. Are you going to be having vacation rentals as a part of the
commercial component or anything contained within the entire project itself? Also, because we
have received reports that there's an overabundance of commercial real estate, particularly I
know in the South Maui region, how is your commercial component going to impact positively
or negatively on the existing infrastructure or the existing glut that's been described to us? Your
golf course Best Management Practices, explanation of that; drainage, to have a better idea of the
question that I posed to highways; and also, I would just like an explanation, if you can, about
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the parks issue that has been raised by the Parks Department. And I may have in the letter from,
of March 13 th , which is to Chairman Carroll from Mr. Glenn Correa, they raise an issue about the
Little League field; and then also credits for parks, if you could address that.
MR. JENCKS: Fine. Not a problem.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Those are just a summary of some of the questions that I have, but I
just wanted him to have an opportunity when we meet again because those would be the things
that I would want some type of answer to.
MR. JENCKS: No problem.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Mr. J encks--

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I appreciate the five minutes.

MR. JENCKS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --you've got 1,400 units, and the 400 and some-odd affordable,
would that be deducted from the 1,400 units?
MR. JENCKS: That would be included within that number, yes.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: So, so that would leave how many market price units?
MR. JENCKS: That would be approximately 1,000, a little less than 1,000.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Little less than 1,000.
MR. JENCKS: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And what is the price range for the market price?
MR. JENCKS: I couldn't give you a number today.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Why not?
MR. JENCKS: I ...we're going to sell some lots. We have-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: At how much?
MR. JENCKS: I don't have a number today. I could maybe do some research for you and get back to
you tomorrow, Thursday. Be happy to do that. We also have multi-family that we're going to, to
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sell, which would be town homes, duplex, triplex. I could do some research and get back to you
on some values. Be happy to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I think I've seen, I've seen comments made in, in various
articles and whatnot that the lots are going to be in the million dollar range and above.
MR. JENCKS: That's very possible ... on the golf course.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and the condominiums are going to be also in the million
dollar range?
MR. JENCKS: There might be some multi-family product that would be in that price range in the golf
course area, that's true.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. I mean I don't think telling us that you're going to do some
affordable housing, which is a requirement anyway, really in, in a range of affordable housing
really fulfills the requirement of the Community Plan designation for this property which says
that there shall be a range of consumer groups addressed in this project, and in fact the project
originally as it was conceived was a residential community for residents of Maui. And so I'd like
to know what the market priced housing is going to be. You must have an idea, at least an idea
of what you're targeting or you wouldn't be, you know, willing to offer the kind of fees that
you're offering, which we do appreciate. So, I think that's vital that we know that.
MR. JENCKS: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And I, I would like to ... evidence of the fact that it, it originally
was intended to be a residential project, Mr. Jencks, is the fact that the, the previous Council who
entitled this property with the zoning that it currently enjoys required a Little League field to be
built, two golf courses with one being dedicated for residential play at 50 percent of the resort,
the going resort rate for golf.
MR. JENCKS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so now what you're coming up with is a project that isn't
really the same as what the original intended entitlements were, and I know that the only
entitlements that you have, County zoning currently is for two golf courses and, and for the Little
League field. And as a matter of fact the current zoning, which I found interesting that you did
not put that in your entitlement history, none of these units that you show on here have been
approved by the County Council in any way, shape, or form. The only true entitlement, I guess if
you can call it that, is the District Boundary Amendment for the 2,000 units, but that's not an
entitlement to build until you get County zoning to build, you don't have an entitlement to build.
So, I just want to make that clear because the current zoning that you enjoy on this property--and
as a matter of fact the property when it received the zoning back in 19, gees, 90 something,
early... as a matter of fact it was in the early-- 55 -
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MR. JENCKS: '93 wasn't it?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --it was in 1992, October of '92.
MR. JENCKS: This is the Golf Course Zoning?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right. The intention of the Council at that time, Mr. Jencks, and,
and, you know.. .I have researched this for Mr. Nishiki back when you first, not you, but
somebody brought this forward. The original zoning and the Council who gave that zoning
conditioned you with many things, with this property with many things, with the intention that
go ahead and build the golf courses first and then we'll corne back and we'll look at the zoning
for residential use. And so my question is all of the, you actually went through all the--not you,
actually back then it was David Nakamura who was representing them--went all the way through
to Phase 3, Project District Phase 3-MR. JENCKS: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --entitlements so ... to build the golf courses and, and all of that.
So my question is would you have any problem fulfilling the conditions that were attached
originally that are currently on this property for the golf courses? And I know that maybe some
of the Phase 3--actually we don't have a copy of it, the Planning Department would have a copy
of it--but there, there are conditions attached to Phase 2 District Approval and I'm wondering if
you would be willing to review those and consider those conditions in this request that you're
asking?
MR. JENCKS: I'll go through them one by one and see where they match up. Be happy to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I would appreciate that. My five minutes are up. Thank you,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thirty second recess. . .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

12:10 p.m.

RECONVENE:

12:11 p.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: .. .(gavel). .. This Land Use meeting of March 15 is now back in session.
Members, it is not possible to have quorum for tomorrow and all the other dates have been
exhausted. I appreciate your participation today and the partic ... , the participation of the
applicant and the Members, but we are going to have to adjourn this meeting. The next meeting
will obviously be after Budget. Thank you again. Any announcements? Mr. Kane.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Just very briefly to reiterate that that doesn't prohibit any of the
Members to pro ... , provide-CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, no.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: --the Committee with any type of questions via communication to you,
can be sent directly to either the applicant or to any other entity that we need responses from and
provide us answers that would help us deliberate on this application. So, I just wanted to
reiterate that that's-CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah. In case it isn't very clear, I will say again that it was just the Chair's attempt
at the eleventh hour to try to find a time to recess so that the Members would have the
opportunity to ask more questions of the applicant so the Chair and his Staff could work on some
of these things during the Budget period. It was an eleventh hour attempt. Unfortunately,
because of the different schedules, mine included, all of the dates available ...we couldn't get
everyone together. But, again, thank you for your participation. This Land Use meeting of
March 15, 2006 stands adjourned. . .. (gavel) . ..
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

ADJOURN: 12:13 p.m.

APPROVED:

Land Use Committee

Transcribed by: Tammy M. Frias
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